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I am for the Prefervation of the Liberty and Pro-
perties of the Subject, and 1 am for the Law; but
1 find the City is flrangely vun dows in their Rights

and Privileges, and there are very Arbitvary Pro--

ceedings.  dnd I am a Citizen, and have taken my
Oath to preferve the Privileges of the City; and [
will rather [ubmit to the Lucowenience of a4 trouble
fomme Officey thaiz let all yanthus: And immedi-
ately he fets himfelf Cock-a hoop, as it there
were no one that took care of the City befides
himfclf, and he were fuch a Patriot, that there
were none like him: And he, and Mr. Bethel,
and Mr. Corifh, forfooth, are the only men of
the Times, the only gcod mens; men that are
for the Liberties and Properties of the Subjett,
and the Rights of the City: W hereas thele are
the only men that have made an Invafion up-
on them, and dene what they could to deftroy
them ; and God knows we might all of us have
enjoyed very quictly,every man his own, 1t thele
contefting Rioters, and bufy factious Fellows,
had not come among us.  Every honeft man, 1
tell you, knows this to be true.

Gentlemen, As to the Bufinels concerning the
Damages, that if you find for the Plaintiff, s
left to your Judgments to confider of, and give
what you fhall think fit upoa fuch an Occa-
fion. Itis very true, it is not fo ealy a marter
to afcertain particular Damages in {uch a Cale;
nor is it in an ordinary way fo eafy to prove,
that becaufe Sir /Zilliam Pritchard was in Prifon
but five or fix Hours there, he could {ufter {o
much Damage as comes to ten thouland Pounds.
As in the Cate of a Perfon of great Quality
and Honour it is not eafy to prove his particu-
Jar Damage; nor in the Cale of any of you,
that are wealthy, able {ufhcient Citizens, to fay
you are 2 Bankrupt, when weall know it is im-

poffible to be true; and {o no particular Damage.

doth enfue, that can be proved; yet however, if
the thing, for which the Altion is brought were
defigned with Malice, tho’ the ill Defign be noc
effeéted, that is no thanks to the Party, noris to
weigh with you, but the malicious Defign muft
govern you.

Now, herc I have taken notice to you, that
the Malice of this Defign here was not againit
Sir #illiam Pritchard as {fuch a particular man,
but againft my Lord Mayor, that this Clan that
met at Ruffel’s was an Overflowing of that Gall
or Malice that was in his Heart.

If Mr. Papiflon had brought an Action upon a
‘Bond only, certainly it had been nothing but
what he might very well do; orif he had pre-
tended to fuc for a bad Debr, that if he had
{taid, would have been loft, 1t had becn fome-
thing: But you fee what it was, and 1t 1s asap-
parent why 1t was, in that Mr. Goodenough faid
to Keeling, threatening him with the difplealure
of the Party, if he did not do it; and Mr, Good-

enongh and Mr. Brome were {uch Strangers toone
another, that he muit threaten Srome to complain
of him, if he did not execute his Writs prelent-
ly. Do they think all Mankind are fo dull or
blind, as not to fee through fuch thin artificial
Stuft as this?

Gentlemen, this 15 the Martter, The Govern-
ment 1s a Thing that is infinitely concerned in
the Cale, that makes it fo popular a Caufe: The
Government of the City, the Honour of your
Chiet Magiftrate, and indeed the Honour of the
King, whole Subftitute he was, is concerned,and
that puts a Weight upon your Inquiry into the
Damages of this Cafe. You are to confider you
give Damages to the Plainuiff, not as Sir Zillianm
Pritchard, but as Lord Mayor: And your Seve-
rity in this Cafe will deter all People from en-
tering into Clans and Cabals, to make Diftur-
bances, and affront the Government.

ftis a thoufand times better to keep within
their own Bounds, mind their Callings and Em-
ployments,and concern themlelves with their own
Affairs, and leave the Adminiftration of the Pub-
hek to them, to whom it belongs, and is intruited
with. And according as we fay in the Law Max-
im, {o fay I to Mr. Papilion and all the Parcy,
Ad Concilium ne accedasy antequam wvoceris, And de
not be fcared with imaginary Dangers,and ground-
lels Jealoufies, into tumultuous and diforderly
Courfes. You had much better kecp in your
Counting-Houfe, I tell you again, and mind
your Merchandife. Nay, and I do not doubt
but you would much rather have done fo, if there
had not been fome further fetch init. It wasnor, I
dare fay, out of a frank, generous Humour to ob-
lige the City, that Mr. Papillon would have
{pent his Time and Moncy in the Office of She-
II:;iE l, no, I know he had better ways to employ

oth.

it was not the generous Mind of Mr. Betfel,
that called him on to be Shernff of London, to
entitle him to {pend his Money; but on purpofe
to be one of the firft, that fhould rurn all things
upfide down in the City, and difturb the Govern-
ment: And they that {ucceeded him, carried on
the Project ; and they that would have becen in,
but could not, had a mind no doubt to follow fo
worfhipful an Example as he laid before them,

Then the Fury withdrew to confider of their
Veiditty and after half an bour’s Stay, re-
turied. and found for the Plaintiff, aud

aff:ffed Damages to Ten Thonfand Pounds,
aud Cofis to Four Maiks.

L. C. 7. Gentlemen, You feem to be Perfons
that have fcme Senfe upon you, and Confidera-
tion for the Government, and [think havegiven
a good VerdiCt, and are tobe greatly commend-
ed for it

CXXXIIL The
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CXXXIIL 7heTrialof RoBERT BAILLIE ¥ iz écotland,
for High-Trealon, December 3, 1684. 36 Car. 1L

Curig Fufticiarie S. D. N. Regis tenia in pretorio
Burgi de Edinburgh wvigefimo tertio die menfis
Deccembris, 1684, peir Nobilewr € Potentem
Comites Georgium Comitem de Linlithgow,
Dominum Livingltown, (5. Fuficiarinm gene-
ralem totius Regni Scotiey €F bonorabiles viios,
Dominos Jacobum Foulis de Colintoun Fuffi-
ciaiie Clericum, Joannem Lockhart de Callle-
hill, Davidem Balfour de Forrer, Regerum
Hoge de Harcarfs, Alexandrum Seaton d¢ Pit-
medden, {5 Patricium Lyon de Carfs, Com-
sniffionarios Jufliciarie ditti S. D. N. Regis,

Curia legitime affirmata.

Intrat
Mr.Robert Baillie of Jervifwood Prifonuer,

T= NDITED and accufed, that where
B 7 notwithftanding by the Common Law
ﬁ«?, e of this, and ﬂllﬁ other well-governed
% “‘;};} Nations, the Confpll'lng o overturn

=R the G vernment of the Monarchy, or
of the Eftablithed Governnent ot this Kingdom,
or the concealing, and n-trevealing of ary frea-
{fonablc Defign, Project, or Ducourle tending
thereto 3 or the aflifting, aiding, or abeting {uch
as have any fuch Defigns, doc- infer the ’ains and

[
I

minions, or to Write, Print, or Speak any thing that
may expre(s or declare fuch their Treafonable Luten-
tions, is declaved Treafon, and punifbable as fuch.
Likeas, by the fecond A&t of His Majelty’s third
Partiament, £t is declared High-Treafon in any of the
Subjells of this Realmy by W viting, Speaking, or any
otiser manncy of away to endeavour the Alteration,
Sufpenfiony or Diverfion of the Right of Succeffion,
or debarring the next lawful Succeffour. Neverthe-
Iefs, it is of verity that the faid Mr. Robert Baillie
of Jervifwood,fhaking off all Fear of God, Refpeét
and Regard to His Majelty’s Authority and Laws,
and having conceives moft unjultly, a great and
extraordinary Malice and Hatred againft His Ma-
jefty’s Perlon and Government, and having de-
figned molt Traiteroufly to debar His Royal
Highnefs, His Majelly’s only Brother, from His
due i<ight of Succeflion, didamongft many other
1 raiterous Aéls, tending to promove that wicked
Defign, end.avour to get himfelf Eleted one
of the Commiflioners for negotiating the Settle-
ment of a Colony of this Nation in Carelina, In
one or other of the Days of the Moneths of fa-
aunaryy, February, Marchy, April, or May, One
thoufind {1x hundred and eighty three Years; and
that he might thercby have the freer and better
Accefs to treat with the Earls of Shafrsbury and
Effex, the Lord Rufleland others, who had enter-
ed into a Confpiracy in England againft His Ma-

Punifhment of Treaton. And by the thind Aét of jeity’s Perfon and Government, and with Colonel

the firft Parbament of King Famies I, The Rebelling
openly agaiaf 1he King’s Perjon; qnd by the thretty
feventh A& of His fecond Parliament, The Ke-
[etting, Mariteiniig. or dotig [aonrs 10 opeity 07 0=
touy Kebellers againft 1ne King's Magefly, is declared
Treafor, and punifhuble by Foifaultare. And by
the hundred f .ty and fourth At of the twelfth
Parh ament of King Fuwes VI, [t is declared Trea-
Jon to Reely Supply, or fnterconmiie wwith Traitors.
Andby rhe firlt i€ of thefirlt Seflion of His Ma-
seft s firlt Parliament, It is declared, That it hall
be fﬁg!}-f reafon for the Subjetls of this Realm, or
any aumber of themsy lefs or wore, upoir any ground
or pretext whatfomeery 1o rifey or coatinte in Ains,
10 make Peace or FWary without His Majefly's [pe-
cial Approbtion. And by the fecond Act of the
fecond Seflion of His Majetty’s faid firft Parlia-
ment, To Ploty Contiivey o lutend Death, or De-
[firuttioiny or to put @iy Rﬁﬂ?‘:‘!fﬂf;’fpﬂﬁ His Ma jefty's
Royal Perfon, or to Dr:prz-r_.:e, Depofe, or Sufpeid
Dim from the Exercife of Fis Royal Geverninent, or
10 levy IVar, or take up Aiiis ﬁgzzf";z/% fis Masefly,
or any Coirmiffionated by Himy or 10 intice any Strai
gers oF vtlers, 10 luvade any of His Muagefiy’'s Do-

$ pyrn. Hift. of his own Times, Vol. L p. 585,

Runfey, F alcot, /7efl, and
Feroufoi, and others, who had likewile Confpired
the Murder of his Majefty’s facred Perfon, and
of the Perfon of His Royal Highnefs; and find-
ing that he could not get himfelf Eleéted one of
the {uld Commiffioners, he relolved to go to Lox-
don upon his own lixpences, and declared to fe-
verals (whom he took grear pains to draw in to
be his Accomplices) that his Defign was to pufh
foreward the Pcop'e of Lngland, who did nothing
but talk, that they might go on effeftually; and
after he had fettled a Correfpondency here, he did
go up to London in onc or other of the faid
Moneths, with Sir John Cockran and Commiflar
Monro, and did then, and there, tranfa& with
the faid Confpirators, or onc or other of them,
to geta Sumof Moncy to the late Earlof 4rgyle,
a Declared Traitor, for bringing home of Men
and Arms, for raifing a Rebellion againtt His Ma-
jelty, and Invading this his Native Countrey ; and
{o carneft was he in the faid Defign, thar he did
chide thofe Euglifly Confpirators, for not fending
the fame timeonfly, and lamented the Delayes uled
in it; and perfuaded the late Earl of #rgyle, and
others in his Name to accept of any Sum, rather
thannot to engage; and amongft the many Meet-
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ings that he had at Losdon, for carrying on the
{ird . Traiterous Delign, there was one at his
own Chamber, where he did meet with the Lord
Melvil, Siv fobn Cockran, and the Ceffnocks Klder
and Y ounger, and amongit others, with Mr. 2/i/-
liam Veitch a Declared 1'rairor, and there he did
treat of the carrying on of the faid Rebellion, and
of the Money to be {furnithed by the Euglifh for
Argyle, for buying of Arms. And that if the
Seots would attempt any thing for their ownRelief,
they would get Affiliance of Horle from England
and from that Meeiing, he or ane or other of
them did fend down Niv, Rebert Martin to pre-
vent any rifing, till it fhould be {eafonable for
carrying on of their Defigns; which Mr. Robert,
after he cameto Scotlaind, did treat with Polwart
and others, for carrylag onof the faid Rebellion,
by fecuring His Majefty’s Officers of State, his
Caftles and Forces, and by putting his Correlpon-
dents here, and their Affociates, in readinels to
aflift the late Earl of Aigyle; and after the {aid
Mr. Baillic had engaged many of his Countrey-
men in Engiand, and had affured his Correfpon-
dents here, that the Enalifh were refolved tofeclud
His Royal Fighie/s from his due Right of Succef-
fion, thereby to encourage them to concurin the
faid Rebellion, and Exclufion, he flew to that
hight, that he did particularly and clofly corre-
{pond with Mr. Robert Fergufony Sit Thomas Ayii-
firoirg, Colonel Rrafey, and [#alcot, who
wereacceflory to that horrid Part of the Confpi-
racy, which was defigned againft the facred Life
of Hlis Majefty, and the Lifcof His Royal High-
nefs, and did fic up feveral Nights with them,
concerting that bloody Maflacer ; at lcaft the faid
Mr. Robeit Baillie ot jervifwood was and is guiity
of having Correfpondence with the Jate barl of
Argyle, and My, Wilitam Veiteh, declared Trai-
tors, and of buing art and part of an Confpiracy,
for aflifting of thele, who were to rife in Arms
aoain{t His facred Majelty, and for Exclufion of
"His Royal Brother, and «f concealing and not
revealing the acceflion and Propofals of others
for that effe¢t. Wherethrow he has commitred,
and is guilty of the Crymes of High-'T'reafon,
Rebellion, and others above {pecified, and is ar:
and part of the famine, which being found by
ane Affize, he ought to be punifhed with For-
f.ulture of Life, Land, and Goods, to the Ter-
ror of otheis to commirt the like hereafter,

His Majelty's Advocat produced an At and
Warrand irom the Lords of his Majefty's mott
Honourable Privy Council, for purfuing and in-
fiting againft the taid NMiv. Robers Badltie of Fer-
vifwoed, whercof the Tenor follows, Ldiubuigh,
the twenty two Day of Deceinber, one thoufand
fix hundred and cighty four Years: The Lords
of his Majcity’s Privy Council do hercby give
Order and Warrand to His Majelty’s Advocat,
to purfue a Procefs of Trealon and Forfaulture,
before the Lords of his Majelty’s Jufticiary, a-
gainit Mr. Robert Baille of jeivifiwood, to mor-
row at two o’Clock in the Afternoon preceifly,
and the faid Lords do hereby Require and Com-
mand Siv Geeine Locibart of Cainwath, and Sir
Yobin Lauder Advocatsy to concur, and affift in
the faid Procels with His M.jelty’s Advocar,
from the intenting, unul the End thercof, us
they will be anfwerable upon their Alledgeance.

Extract by me, fic fubferibizar,

Colin Mackenzie, Cls, 54, Concilis,

133. 'Tbé }Trz'dl cf Robert .B:ail
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. Purfiers, " Procuratorsin Defence.
Sir George Mackeiszie of Sir Patrick Hume,
Rofbaughy, Our Sove- Mur.2Vzltey Pringle,
* b ! ™ .
reign Lord’s Advo- Mr. famss Grabam,

. t:ét._ o N}Ir. Will. Fletcher,
v George Lockhart : Mr. William Baillie
Sir Fohn Lauder }Adt ocats. Adv{;catsf

The Pannals Procurators produced ane A& of
His Majefty’s Privy Council, in their favours
whereof the Tenor follows. Edinburgh, the twen-
ty third of Decewnber, one thoufand fix hundred
cighty four Years: The Lords of His Majefty’s
Privy Council having confidered are Addrefs
made to them, by Mr. Rotert Baillie of Fervif-
'_zvaad‘, now indited at the Inftance of His Ma-
jelty’s Advocat, before the Lords Commiflioners
of Jufticiary, of Treafon, do hercby Require
and Command Sir Patrich Huwey, My, alter
Pringle, Mr. James Graham, My, Williasn Fletcher
Mr. Fames Falcower, Mr. W illiam Bailiie, Advo-
cats, to Confult, Compear, and Debate for the
Petitioner, in the Procefs of Treafon, mentioned
in his Addrefs, without any hazard, as they will
be an{werable at their Persl, Extradt by me Vi
fubferibitur, ,

IWilliem Pateifon, Cls, $ti. Concilii.

After reading of the Inditement, the Lord Ju-

ftice General required the Pannal to make anfwer
thereto,

The faid r. Robert Baillie Paimal pleaded
Not Guilty.

Mr, ZZalter Priugle Advocat, as Procurator for
the faid Mr. Robert Baillie of Jervifwood Pannal,
alleadges that he ought not to pafs to the know-
ledge of an affize; becaufe he had not got a Ci-

ation upon fyfreen Days, or at leaft on a compe-
tent time, which is ufual, and abfolutely neceflary
in all Actions, and much more in Criminal Pur-
{uits, cfpecially, fecing, if a competent time be
not allowed to the Pannal, he is precludit of the
Benefit of ane Exculpation, withour which he
cannot prove his Objections againft WitnefTes,
or Aflyzers, or any other legal or competent De-
fences; and by the late Aét of Parliament con-
cerning the Juftice Court, all Pannals are allowed
to ratic Precepts of Exculpation, and thereupon
to cite Witnefles for proving the Objections
againft Witneffes, and Aflyzcrs,which neceflarily
ptefuppoleth, that a competent time muft be al-
lowed to the Pannal to exccut his Diligence, ot
otherwife, how is it poflible he can prove a De-
fence of alibi, or any other juft Defence? And
as this 1s moft confonant to that clear A& of
Parliament, and to material Joftice, and to the
Rules of Humanity; fo this Point has been al-
ready fully and often decided, and larely in the
Cale of one Robertfos, in Fuly 1673, the Inflance
whercol is given by His Mujefty’s Advocat in his
Book of Criminals, and Title of Libels, where
the Lords found, that albeit Robertfou cot his

Inditement in Prifon, yct he behoved to get 1t
upon fyfreen Days.

His Majefty’s Advocat oppons the conftant

r . a
Fractof Dec:fions,whereby it is found, thar a Per-
fon 1ncarcerated may be tried upon twenty four

Hours; and the lare A& of Parliament is only in
the Cale where a Summons or Libel is to be rait-
ed 5 but here there is no Libel or Summeons, but

only
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- only an Inditement § nor’ was any Exculpation ment, not to return uhder the Pain of Death,

| fought’in this Cafe, before the Trial, which is

~ the Cafe.provided for by At of Parliament.

" The Lords, Juftice General, Juftice Clerk,
ind Commiflioners of Jufticiary, repel the De-
fence, in refpect the Pannal is a. Prifoner, and
that it hasbeen the conftant Cuftom of the Court,
and that the Pannal made ro former application

for an Exculpation.

Sir Patrick Hume for the Pannal alleadges (al-
ways denying the Libel, and whole Members,
and Qualifications thereof) that in fo far as the
Libel is founded upon harbouring, maintaining,
and intercommuning with the Perfons mentioned
in the Dittay, the Pannal ought to be afloylzied,,
becaule it is res hallenus judicaia, he having been
formerly purfued before the Lords of his Majefty’s
Privy Council for the fame Crimes, and fined in
a confiderablc Sum; and therefore that Crime
cannot now be'made ule of as a ground of T'rea-
fon againft the Pannal.

His Majefty’s Advocat anfwers, That he re-
ftricts his Libel to the Pannal’s entering in a Con-
fpiracy, for raifing Rebellion, and for procuring
Money to be {ent to the late Earl of Argyle, for
carrying on the f{aid Rebellion ; and for conceal-
ing, and not revealing ; neither of which is refer-
cd to his Oath; and confequently was not 7¢s ju-
dicata, there being nothing referred to his Oath ;
but his Converfe and Correfpondence with fome
Minifters, and others within the Kingdom, and
his own Gardiner, and his writing Letters to my
Lord Argyle; and oppons the Decreet of Council
itfeif, and reftriéts the Libel toall the Crimes not

infifted on in the Decrect.

Sit Partrick Hume replies, That as to the Cor-
refponding with the late Earl of 4igy/atany time
fince his Forfaulture, was exprefly proponcd asan
Interrogator to the Pannal in chat Purtuir, at His
Majelty’s Advocat’s Inftance again{t him, before
the Lords of His Majelty’s Privy Council, and
that not only his own Corrclpondence by himlelf,
but alfo by Major Holws, Mr. Carflares, Robert
Weft, Thomas Shepherdy, Richard Rumbold, and
Colonel Rumfey, as the Interrogator bears, asap-

cars by a double ot the Actof Councii, written
by the Clerk of Council’s Servant, and is offered
to be proven by my Lord Advocat’s Oath: And
as to any Correfpondency with Mr. Feirch, 1t is
not relevant, fince he was not declared Rebel.

Sir Fobiz Lauder for His Majelty’s Intereft, an-
fivers, T hat he oppons the Decrect of Privy Coun-
ci!, where no fuch Interrogator was put to the
Pannal, and the Decreet muft make more Faith
than any pretended Scroli, and cannot be taken
away by His Majelly’s Advocat’s Oath, to His
Majcfty’s Prejudice s and for Mr. W iliiam Veitc,
he tanda exprelly Forfault in Auno 1667, and the
Doom of Forfaulture is ratified 1n the Parlia-

ment 16009,

| which did take off any former Punifhment; and

it was no Crime in any Perfon to intercommune
with him, efpecially in another Kingdom ; and
by the late A& of Council in Auno 1683, even the
Converling and Intercommuning with declared
Traitors, is reftricted to an Arbitrary Punifliment.

His Majefty’s Advocat oppons the ftanding
Doom of Forfaulture againft 7zizch, and the Pro-
clamation, or A€t of Council itfelf.

The Lords, Juftice General, Juftice Clerk, and
Commiffioners of Jufticiary, having confidered
the Libel purfued by his Majefty’s Advocat, a-
gainft Mr. Robert Baillie of Jervifwood, with my
Lord Advocar’s Declaration, whereby he reftrits
the fame to the Crimes notinfifted on in the De-
creet of Council formerly pronounced againt
the Pannal: They find the {ame Relevant as it
is reftri¢ted, to _infer the Pain of Treafon, and
remits the fame to the knowledge of the Affize,
and repels the remnant Defences proponed for
the Pannal, in refpet of the Decreet of Council
produced, bearing no fuch thing as is allcdged,
and of the Anfwers made by His Majefty’s Ad-
vocat thereto.

ASSITS A
The Earl of Strath- Alexander Mili of Car
ore, 711, '
The Earl of Belcarras, | Mr. Fawes Elies of
Sir George Skeen, Pro- | Stenbopfmilns,
voft of Aberdeen, Sir William Drummond
Sir Fames Fleming, late of Halthornden,

Provoft of Zdiu- | Major dudrew White,

burgh, Licutcnant of Edin-
Sir Fobu Ramfay of burgh Caftle, ‘

W hitebill, Mr. David Grabam,
Adain Hepburz of Sheriff of #igtonn,

Huinby, Golin Mackenzie, Cole
Andrew Bruce of Earle- | lebtor of Rofs,

Jhall, David  Burner, Mere
Fobn Stuart, Tutor of |  chant.

Alpin,

HE Affize lawfully {worn, no Obje&ion
of the Law in the contrary.

T

is Majefty’s Advocat for Probation addu-
ced the Witnefles and Writs aforementioned ;
and firft,

Walter Barl of Tarsas.

Sir Patrick Hume Procurator for the Pannal,
objeéts againft the Earl of Zarras, that he cannot
be a Witnefs, becaule he is focius €F particeps cri
minis; and it 1s clear by the 34 Chap. Stat. 2.
Rob. 1. concerning thefe that are excluded from
bearing of Teftimony, that Secii {5 Participes ejuf~
dem criminis, wvel tncarcerati &5 vinenlati, cannot
bear Teltimony: As alfo, the Earl of Tarras be-
ing prefently underan Inditement of High-Trea-

" fon,and under the Impreflions of Fear, and Death,

Sir Patrick Hume oppons the Reply, That as
to the Correfponding with Mr. eitel, 1t docs not

appear that he is the Perfon mentioned inthe Act
or Parliament ; and albeit he were, as he is not,

he having thereafter come home to §eotlaidy all
the Punifhment inflited upon him was Banifh-
V o n. L

no Perfon in his Circumf{tances can be admitred
a Witnels, as 15 not only clear from the forefaid

Statute, but from the Common Law.

His Majefty’s Advocat anfwers, That it is an

Lxception from that Rule, both by the Common
7 A Lﬂ.W,j
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- Law, and ours, that in the Crime of lefe Majel-

tic, and efpecially that Branch thereot, which we
call 2 Confpiracy, focins Criminis may be a Wit-
nefs, and whichis introduced very reafonably by
Lawyers, to fecure the Common Intercft of
Mankind, which is the Chief of all Interefts ;
and becaufe Confpiracies cannot be otherways
proved, and not to allow this manner of Proba-
tion, were to allow Treafon, fince no Man can
?rove a Plot, but be that isupon it, and how can
2 Man objet againit bim as a Witnefs, whom
himfelf trufted with his Life, his Fortune, and
their common Plot? Nor is the intenting of the
Libelany fironger Qualification, fince every Man
that is focius criminisy is under the fame Imprel-
fion, and it would rather feem the greater and
nearer apprehenfions a Man has of Death, he will
be the more fincere and faithful 5 nor has the Earl
of Zarras, nor did he ever feek any Security, in
order to his deponing. And this has been con-
{tantly, and latlie, conform to the Common Lavw,
as may be fcen in the hundreds of Citations fet
down by Mafcard, deprobatisiibus, Vol. 4. concluf.
1318. Num. 21. and the contrary Citations prove

only, that regularly focius criminis cannot be a
Witnefs.

Sir Patrick Hume replies, That the Statures of
Robert the firftis opponed, and won eff diffinguen-
dum, ubi lex won diftinguity and not only was he /fo-
cius criminis, which isacknowledged, but he is -
carceratis, and lying under an inditement of High
Trealon, and has thrown bimfelf on the King’s
Mercy, and it is not proper he fhould be a Wit-
nels, {eeing he 1s in the King’s Mercy, who may
give him his Life, or nots and there was never

a Perfon in thefe Circumitances, that ever was
admitted a Witnels.

Mr. Walter Pringle adds, That the Earl of Tar-
sasis not only in the Cale of a Perfon who ftands
indited for High Treafon ; but muft be looked
upon as a Perfon condemned for the faid Crime,
{eeing he fully and amply confeft the Crime; (&
confeffus habetnr pro convicle, and never any Law-
ver aflerted, That damnatus crimiiis lefz Maje/-
¢at7s could be admirted as a Witnels, and there 15
nothing more cleary than that by the common
T.aw, and the Law ofall Nations, this Objection
ought to be fuftained ; for the civil Law is clear,
Jeg. 11, cod. de tefiicus, and Matiens in his Title,
de probationibus, cap. de teftibus, doth affert poft-
tivlie, that the Cryme of lefe Majeftie, Herefic,
and generally all thefe Crymes, gue fine fociis now

poffunt facile admitti, arc ot excepted. And he
aflerts, that the Lawyers, viz, Gomefirs,and De-

cianus, Wwho are of another Opinicn, do acknow-
ledge, nominstuimn & rea damnaiduin non efféy and
that they contravert only, Zu iwvwminatio rei fit in-
dicium [ufficieis ad torguendrmn rominalnis.

Sir Georpe Locthart repeats, and oppons the
Anfwer, and che Cryme libelled, being a Con-
fpiration of Treafon, which of its own Nature Is
managed and carricd on by Sccrecie and Contri-
vance ; and which is only knownto the Complices
of the Treafon, and which cannot be committed
fine fociisy the Law of this Kingdom, and of all
Nations, do allow focios criiniinis 1o be tefies babi-
Jes; and not only are they admicted in the cafe of
fuch Conjurations, but generally in omutbus crimi-
nibus exceptis, amongt which the Crime of Peraly-
elliony and lefe Majeltie is the chicf; and 1t is ab-
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{olutely impoffible, that:Plots and Confpirations

of Trealon can be otherways proven, than per foci-
o5, and {uch as are participes criminis, and which
is the common Opinion of all Lawyers, as may
appear by Farin. Queft. 45. And the Authorities
cited by him, and which is the inviclable Prac-
tique of this Kingdom: And as to that Pretence,
That the Earl of Zarras is under 2 Procefs of
Treafon, and has fubmitted to His Majefty’s
Mercy, and that confefus babetur pro convifo, it
imports nothing, and infers no morethen that he
is focius criminisyand ts {till a habil Witnefs ; as to
Conjuration of ‘Frealon, focius crimiais boc ipfo,
that itisacknowledged, or proven, being ttill un-
der the hazard of Procefs, or Condemnation,
which Law regards not in regard of the Sccrecie
involved 1n the nature of the Crime, that either
Witneflcs segie aiiuy neque habitu, can be prefent;
{o thatthe Objeltion amounts to no lefs then that
Conjurations of Treafon cannot atall be proven;
And as to the Law cited from the Majettic, it
imports no more than that the Objection regulari-
ter procedit, in Crimes, which of their own nature
are not perdificilis probationisy and are not inter
crissing excepta, fuch as the Cryme of Confpiracy
and Trealon 1s.

Mr. WWilliam Fletcher oppons the Objection, and
Reply, and further adds, that albeit ciimen lefee
©ojefietis be reckoned inter crimina exceptay and
{o have fome Privilege, as to the Qualification of
Witnefles ; yet it cannot be denied, but thercare
fome Objections competent againtt Witnets ad-
duced for proving Confpiracics, and Treafon,
verbi canfay that a Witnefs isa capital Enemy, or
that he is fay poteftate accufatoris, and the Objec-
tion now pleaded, being taken complexlie, viz.
Thatthe Earl of Zarrasis not only focius crimiais,
but allo, that he 1s prdlico judicio rexs, upon the
fame Crime, and thar as means to procure his
Maijefty’s Favour, he has {ubmitted himfelf, and
come in his Majefty’s Mercy, by an acknow-
ledgment of the Cryme, before the Dier of Cita-
tion, he 1s obnoxious to a moft juft Objeétion,
viz. That he 1s fab potefiate, and by the Submiffi-
on and Confeffion, his Life and Eitate is now in
His Majefty’s Hand, {o that ke is notonly in the
Cale ota 7eus confeffus, but in the Cafeofa Wit-
nefs, who does ablolutely depend upon His Ma-
jelty’s Advecat the Purfuer ; and as a private ac-
cujer could not adduce his own Servants to be
Witnefies, becaufe they are teffes doineflici, and

-depend upon him ; fo farlefs ought a Witnefs to

be adduced, who not only depends, as to his Ef-
tatc, but as to his Lite; and the Law givcs a
very good Realon, and which ts mentioned by
Paulusy Lib, 1. vecoptayum feiteitiarnin, cap. 12.
payag. vlt, in thele Wordsy De fe confeffus non eff
anaiendus ot teflis, nz alionow falutcis in dubinm de=
ducaty qui de (na defperavit. Andastothe Pretence
that a Conjuraticn is a Crime fo occulr, that it
muft either be proven by fuch Witnefles, or other-
wavs the guilty Perfor: will efcape: Ivis anfwer-
ed, That in this Cafe, His Majefty’s Advocat had
an eafie Remedy, for he might have purlued the
Panaal, before he purfucd the Witnels, and the
Terror and Apprehenfion of the event of a Pro-
cefs for Treafon cannot be confiruéted otherways,
then to have influence upon the Depofition of the
Witnefs 3 and as to the Citation out ot Furinacius,
it is only in the Cale of forins criminis ; but when
he comes to treat de tefle accufato vel coreerats,
Ounzfl. ;6. articulo guarto, he fays, Reguls fif i;.a/ar-

itfato
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cufaroy quod is pendente accufatione a tefiimonio ve-
pellitur. And by the fecond Rule of the fame
Article, he fays, it is a Principle gqued carceratus
tefiimonium ferre probibetur, and he gives this Rea-
{on, ‘quia prefumitur, quod falfum teflimonium di-
ceret pro aliquo, qui ei promiferit [e liberave a vine
eulo, and limits this Rule, that he muft be car-
ceratys propiey crimien.

Sir Patrick Hume adds, That it is 2 certain
Principle, that any Perfon that is guilty infamia
suris, cannot be a Witnefs, no more than a Per-
{on that is convi@, and condemned of T'reafon,
and if he were convi@, and condemned of Trea-
fon, he could not be a Witnefs, even in the
Cale of Trealon: So neither can the Earl of Zar-
~us in this Cafe be received 2 Witnefs, for he be-
ing adduced a Witnefs after he reccived his In-
ditement, and confefled the Crime, is cquivalent,
as if he had been adtually conviét; and whatever
may be pretended, that sefles iufames may be ad-
‘mitted 5 yet it was never afferted by any Lawyer,

that a Perfon conviét of Treafon can be admit-
ted a Witnefs.

Nota, That the Earl of Tarras depoied #o-
thing agaimft Jervilwood, but what the
other 1o W itnefles deponed againfi bimfelf
beforc the Tiyal, and upon which thereafter
1hey being renewwed, the Earl was forefanit-
ed, fo that there conld be wo ground of
Sufpicion from his Circumflances.

The Lords vepelled the Objetion, againft the
Earl of Tarras, and ordains bin to be re-
ceived a Witnefs,

7Vulter Earlof Tarras, aged forty Years, mar-
ried, purged, and fworn; being interrogar, if
ahout the Time that Sir Fobu Cockranyand Com-
miflar Monro got their Commiflion from the Ca-
ralina Company for London, the Pannal Mr. Ro-
Lert Baillic of Fervifwood did not defire the De-
ponent to fpeak to Commiflar Monro, to try if
he could get him the faid Pannal added to that
Commiflion, depones afirmative. Being Inter-
rogat, if the faid Fervifwood, the Pannal, did not
tell the Deponcnt that he was refolved to go to
London however upon his own Expences, and
that his and their going about the Ceroling Bufi-
nels was but a Pretence, and a Blind; bur that
the true Defign was to pufh forward the People
of Esugland, who could do nothing but ralk, to
po more effectually about their Bufincls, depones
affirmative. Deponcs that the Pannal did fettle
a Correfpondence with the Deponent, whereby
he was to give an Account to the Deponent of
what fhou!d pafssbetwixt the Country Party in
Euglandy and the Scotfuc there: And on the
other Hand, the Deponent was to writc to him
what occurred here. Depones that the Pannal
¢id fay to the Deponent, if the King would fuf-
fer the Parliament of England to fity and pafs
the Bill of Seclufion, that that was the only way
to fecure the Proteftant Religion. Depones that
rhe Pannal faid to him, that the King might be
induced to do fo, if the Parliament would take
fharp or brisk Meafures with him, or the like.
Jepones thefe Words were {poke to bim by the
Pannal, fince the holding of the lalt Seflion of
this current Parlizment ; and before the Pannal
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and Commiflar Monro went for London, Depones
that atter the Pannal went to London, he did givé
the Deponentan Account by Letters, that Things
were in great Diforder there, and that he hoped
there would be effeCtual Courfes taken to remeid
them. Depones that Mr, Rebert Martin did come
to Mr. Pringle of Torwoodlies Houle in May, 1683,
or thereby, and brought a Letter to the Depo-
nent’sLady unfab{cribed,but theDeponent knows
1t was Jervifwood’s Hand-writing, who was then
at London, and that Mr. Mastin told the Depo-
nent, that Thingsin England werein great Difor-
der, and like to come to an height, and that the
Country Party were confidering on Methods for
fecuring the Proteftant Religion. And that 47-
chibald fometime Earle of Argyle, was to get Ten
thoufand Pounds Srerling, whereas Thirty thou-
fand Pounds Srerling was fought by the Scotfmen
at London, which was to be fent over to Holland
toprovide Arms; and that the late Earl of Argyle
was toland with thefe Arms in the #efi- Highlands
of Scotland, and that the Deponent’s Friend Fer-
vifwood the Pannal, was to be fent over with the
Money. Depones that Philiphaughand he went to
Gallowfhiels Houfe, where they met with Pofwars
and Gallvwfbiels, and that it was talked among(t
them there, that in cafe thofe in England fhould
rife in Arms, thatit was neceffary in that Cafe,
that fo many as eould be got on the Borders,
fhould be inareadinefs to deal with Straglers, and
{eize upon Horfes, and that thereafter they fhould
join with thofe that were in Arms on the Bor-
ders of England. Depones, Thatinthe Cafe fore-
faid, it was faid, 1t was convenient the Cailtle of
Stirling, Berwick, and fome other Strengths {hould
be feized upon ; and 1t was likewife f[poke amongft
them, that fome Perfons thould be employed, to
inquire what Arms was in that Countrey. Dee
pones, that it was {poke then, that the beft time
for Argyle was to land in the Weft, when there
was a Stur in Eugland or Scotland, or Words to
that Purpofe. Depones, that cvery one defired
another to {peak to fuch particular Perfons as
they could truft, by letting a Word fall indirectly
upon {uppofition, in cale of the Rifling in £ug-
land, concerning the Affair for preparing of them :
And that he was told by Philiphaugh thereafter,
that there was a Word and Sign to be ufed
amongft them, wiz. the Sign was by loofing 2
Button on the Breaft, and that the Word wus
Harmony. Depones, the Pannal {fpoke to the De-
ponent, to advertife Torwoodlie, that he might
acquaint Mr. Villiam Veitch a forfaule Traytor,
who was in Northumberland, that he might keep
himfelf clofe, and be on his Guard, left he fhould
be catched ; which was fince the Pannal was Pri-
{oner in the Tolbooth of Edinburgh. And this s
the Truth, as he fhall anfwer to G O D.

Sic [ubferibiter,

Tarias.
Linlithgow. 1. P. D.

Alexander Monro of Bear-crofts, aged forty five
Years or thereby, folutus, {olemnly fworn and
purged. Depones, that the Earl of Zarras pro-
pofed to the Deponenty that Fervifwood might
be made one of the Commiffioners for the Affair
of Carolina, for that he could not {afely ftay at
Home; and that the Deponent’s an{wer was,

that he had no Intereft in the Affair, and fo
7 A 2 could
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could not be 2 Commiffoner. Depones, That
the Pannal did wait for the Deponent at #ooller,
and did go alongft with him to London, and that
by the way he heard him regrate his own hazard
and others, becaule of Blackwood's Sentence ; and
that he heard him regrate the hazard our Laws,
and Liberties, and the Proteftant Religion were
in, Depones, That the Pannal {poke to the De-
ponent and others, more than once at Londos for
getting of Moncy from the Englifh, to be fent
to the late Earl of 4rgyle, for bringing home
Arms for the faid Earl’s Ufe, as he underftood,
for carrying on an Infurrection and Rebellion in
Scotland. Depones, That at the time libelled,
in Fervifweod’s Chamber in Londen, Mr. William
Veitch, a forfault Traytor was prefent ; and that
Sir Fobn Cockran did at that Meeting expreily
{peak of Money to be fent to Aigyle, for bring-
ing home Arms for invading the Kingdom of
Scotlaind 3 and that at another Occafion he heard
{fome of them fay, That there would be twen-
ty thoufind Men in Scotland who would aflift
the Rebellion, and that he heard Sir Foh»
Cockrair and Fervifwood {peaking of ir, but can-
not be pofitive which of the two faid 1t.  De-
pones, That at the Meeting he heard Fervifwood
{peak, bur did not hear him oppofc that Trea-
fonable Propoful, or contradict the Overture
propoled by Sir Febu Cockran. Dcpones, That
Mr. Robert Martin was fent down from that
Meeting which was at Fervifwwood’s Chamber, to
Scoland, to try what the People ot Scotland
would do for their own Safety: And that ic
was underftood that the People of Scotlaind
thould not rife 'till there fhould bea rfing in Lug-
land, and that thc Commitlion was granted to
Mr. Robert Marting by all the Perfons prefent,
whereof Ferwifwood was one,and that there were
prefenty, the Lord Aflvily Siv Fobn Cockran,
Teflnocks eider, and younger, Mr. Hilliam Caf-
tavess Mr. Filliam Feitchy, Fervifwood, and the
Deponent; and depones, they did contribute
Moncy for Mr. Martin’s Journey., Depones,
That at his return, he meeting with the Depo-
neat, told him, thar Martters were in that Con-
dition in Svoiliid, and that the Countrey was in
{uch a Condition, as bittle would kindle the Fire
in order to the Rebellion.  And thisis the Truch

as hie fhall anfiver to G O D.
Sic [abferibitur,
Alexander Monro,
Linlithrow, 1. P. D,

Yames Murrzy of Philiphangh, aged 30 Years,
married, purged, and [worn, produces four Leaves
of Depofitions, emitted by him before the Lords
of the fecret Committee, and all written and
{fubfcribed with his own Hand, which being pub-
lickly read, in Prefence of the Juftices, and Af-
fize, he adheres thereto, in all Points, whereof
the Tenor follows. Upon the Day
of May, 1683, Upona Letter from Mr. Priugle
of Torwoodlie, I came to his Houle 1n the Morn-
ing, and he prefently led me to a Chamber,
where I found My, Robert Marting who was lare-
ly come from London, with whom we ftayed a
little, and difcourfed of the News, and about the
prefent  Condition, and Temper of Eugland,
and in particslar of Loudon, which Mr, Martin

133. The Trial of Robert Baillie 36 Car. II.

faid, was much irritated through fome Attempts
upon their Priviledges, either as to the Concern
of the Sheriffs, or their Charter, but that all ho-
nelt Men were of good Heart and very brisk ; and
after fome general Difcourfes to this Purpofe,
Torwoodlie and 1 left him and walked out a lit-
tle, and he told me, he was expeéting the Earl
of Zarrasprelently, for he had fent to him ; and
Mr. Martinhad a Letter to him from Fervifiwood ;
then he told me that there were great Matters
in agitation at London, and that Mr, Mastin
had come down with 2 Commiffion from our
Friends there (I do not remember he named any,
but that Ibehoved not to expect he would impart
his Inftruétions to me, for he was to communicat
them only to Polwert and himfelf, at lealt for
thefe Shyres) and they were to pitch on fuch as
they thought fit to intruft with the Affair, where-
upon heaflured me, that he had great Confidence
in me, and his Kindnels to me obliged him to
fend for me, to acquaint me that Matters were
now come to a ¢iifis, and that he had realon to
think Englaind would fhortly draw to Arms, and
{tand by them, ’till they were fatisfied anent the
Bill of Exclufion, and whatother Security they
could propofe for the Proteftant Religion, and
thewr Liberties; and thatit was no Project of any

- inconfiderable Party, but a Defign through the

Kingdom, and that many of the fincft Men, and
of the greateft Intereftand Credit there, had ad-

jufted almott every thing neceflary for the pur-

pofe, and had concerted Matters with our Friends
there, in order to Concurrens from this, and had
agreed to advance Money for furnithing Arms
here (1 do not remember be told me more Particy-
lars at this time) but faid, Polwoer? weuld be at
Gallowfheils that Night,and it would be neceflary
that the Earl of Tarras and 1 thould confer wizh
him fully on the Bufincs; about this time the
Earl of Zarras lighted, and Turwoodlic having left
us for a little time, being gone to bring Mr, A4y~
tin, the Barl of Tasras asked me, what News?
told him of Mr. Afar#in’s being there, but that he
had given me no account of the Defign of his
down-coming, which perhaps he would acquaint
him with, but by what I had heard from Zor<woodlse,
Tunderftood it to be, toengadgeus torifcin Arms
fhortly, whereat the Earl of 7arras hummed, and
faid, he would look ere he leapt fuch a Leap, or
fome fuch Expreflions ; prefently Mr. Alartin
came, and the Kar! of 7arras, and he retired a lit-
tle after thereading an Letter he gave him, the
Contents whereof was (as the Earl of Tarras in-
formed me) only an Order from Fervifwood to de-
liver fome Money to the Bearer, which he had left
with him, and the Earl of Zarras called for his Ser-
vant, and bad him bring up the Money, in the
mean time, Torqvoodiie asked me, if I had acquaint-
cd the Earl of Zarras with whathe {poke to me,and
I'told bim, I had let fomething of it fall to him, but
it was not to be thought, that Perfons of Senfe
and Quality would engadgc in fuch Defigns at ran-
dom 3 lo Zorweodiic faid, that (tho' Mr. Aartin
would not commune with usupon his Commiflion
diretly) yet he thoughtit would be fir we confer-
red, and without taking notice of his Commiflion,
difcourfed of things upon Suppofitions, and as
our own private Notions, abftract from any Pro-
{pect of a prefent Defign ; foafter Dinner we four
went toa Chamber, and after {fome general Dif-
courfes of the Difcontents of both Kingdoms,

thefe Suppofitions following were difcouried (and
A
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as I remember Mr. Martin ftarted them all, or the  juft ground for fuch a Tryft, confidering the Un-

moft part) viz. What if the Countrey-Party in
England thould have Thoughts of going to Arms
(whereof he knew nothing, but enly fuppofed fuch
a thing, for difcourfing a lictle freely, and to know
our Sentiments, what we thoughr could be expe-
¢ted here in fuch a Cafe) would it not be expedi-
ent to have a fettled Correfpondence betwixr that
Party there and here, and might not Matters
be fo adjufted, that both Kingdoms fhould draw
out in onc day, and might not as many be ex-
pected to undertake in thefe Shires, and about
Edinburgh, as would ferve to furprife, and feize
our Rulers (I do not remember any named, but
the then Chancellor and Trealurer) and {ome
to join with thefe on the Englifh Borders, to
aflilt them to {urprize Berwick, and if for that ef-
fcét, any Horle, or Dragoons, that thould be in
the Bounds, might not be {urprized, that their
Horfe and Arms might be gotten to furntfh the
Country People, and Stirfing Caltle, and if Areyle
fhould at the fame time land in the 27¢f, and raife
that Countrey ; would not thefle Meafures contri-
bute much to the Advancement and Sccurity of
the Intereft of that Party here, fince thercby the
Government would be difordered, and fuch Steps
would encourage all that had an Inclination to the
Ccuntrey-Party, to draw to them frankly, and fcar
many of the other fide to act againit them, and fo
they might have leifure to join from all Places; and
might it not be expetted, there would beas many
in this Kingdom, as would be able to deal with the
Forces here, at leaft divert them from troubling
Enrland 2 Thisis the Sum, as I remember, of what
was propofed, and difcourfed of, tho’ I cannot di-
ftinétly fay, it was in this Method and Expreffion,
nor was all moved at once, but dropped now and
then, as the Difcourfe {cemed to give Rife to 1t;
and tho’ I cannot fully recount all that was {poke
on thefe Heads, and tell diftinétly what this and
that Man fud, yet I remember thele following An-
{wers were given, and (as I judged } acquielced
to by the whole Company ; and they were certainly
the Earl of Turras his Sentiments and mine; and
every one that fpoke, ufed this or fome {uch Pre-
caution, that if they were concerned, or to give
Counlelin any fuch Cuulfe (as they were not, {5¢.)
1. As tothe fettling a Correlpondence, it was con-
fefled to be very convenient for thofe of 2 common
Intereft, but the prefent Circumftances of Affairs
were fuch (as we thought) that none could be
found here, who was fit to manage it, and would
undertakeit. 2. As to the tryfting at the fame time
ir could not be done without the divulging the
Defign to all Ranks of People, which none would
undertake,except thefealready indefperatCircum-
{lances; and they could not have generally much
Influence. 3. The thing was not at all advicable
for this Kingdom, f{ince if any of Eiugland’s own
Meafurcs milcarried, they would not ilir for any
fuch Truft; and the {pring of their Motions being
always at Loidow, there might happenan Interrup-
tion near the Appsintment, whereof thefe here
could have no timeous Notice, and {fo might kecp
Tryft, whereby they would be expofed a Prey, and
if they thould {ubfift any time, or prevail (which
was harldly poffible) the multitude that muit be
employed, are tainted with fuch wiid and unruly
Principles, that if once they got the Sword in their
Hands, they would never be brought to Order,
witheut a greater Force to over-awe them, neither
would any Expettation of Argyle’s landing be a

certainty of Sea-Voyages; and if Argyle were to
be the Head, undoubtedly many People would
conclude that he were to be {ufpefted of private
Defigns, and that reftoring him might lay hinr a~
fide: Asalfo, that Defpair might blind his ulual
Prudence, and prompt him to unfolid and undi-
gefted Methods, and {o it was to be expefted, that
few of the Gentry {except {uch as he had fpecial
Influence on, or fuch as were under hard Circums
ftances ) could embarque with him. 4. As to the
{urprifing Rulers, 9¢. It was inveighed againft, as
an Action not to be thought of amongit Prote-
{tants (efpecially when the very Defign of it was
pretended to fecure that Religion, which taught
its Profeflors to abhor and deteft {fuch Principles
as Popifh, yea Unchriftian) fince it could not be
effeGtuat without Bloodfhed of People, fecure in
Peace, which being by all approven Divines and
Cafuifts condemned as unlawful, and meer Affafli-
nation, it was not to be doubted, that as fuch a
Pratice would caft a blot upon the whole Affair,
and quite take off any pretence of Defenfive Arms,
{o it would fcar many from joining. Thefe things
were reafoned again and again; but I do not re-
member there was any formal Conclufion made,
but the Difcourfe was let fall 3 and Mr. Masrtintold
us, if any of us had a mind for a Suit of Armour,
he could provide as many as we plealed, from one
who had made a great many latcly to honeft Men
at London, of a new fafliion, very light, and at an
caly rate, {o Torwoeodlie and I gave him our Mca-
fures, Earl of Zarrastold he he had a Suit already,
then Zorewoodlic faid to the Earl of Tarias and me,
we would meet Polwort at Gallowfbeils, and defired
we might commun with him, anent what we had
been difcourfing ; fo we hafted away, that if poffi-
ble we might both get home that Night, 1t being
Saturday, and we unfurnifhed for ftaying abroad,
and Zorwoodife whifpered me juft, as I was mount-
ing (as I think)thathewas not clear we thould com-
mune before Gallow/beils, for he was fometimes too
much Good fellow, or the like ; fo the Earl of Tas-
ras and I rode away together,and upon the way we
were both of Opinion,that the Suppofitions we had
difcourfed ofy were in eftet Propofitions; and re-
fvlved, ifthey were infifted on by Polweit, as we fu-
{pected, we would adhere to the former Arnfwer,
and would undertake nothing in thefe Methods.
W hen we came to Gallewfbeils, the Latrd was a-
broad, and Polwoeyt was not come 3 {o we had
Thoughts to go away, being both damped with
what had pafied, and inclining to be free of farder
medling ; but the Lady would by no means hear of
our going till her Husband came, who, theaflured
us, was about the Doors, and fhe having {ent to
call him, he would be in prefently ; yetit was fo
late erc he came, that the Earl of 7z71¢5 could hard-
ly have day enough to go home with ; {o Gallosy-
fheils would not let him go, and he would not ftay,
unlefs I {tayed, {o we boch ftayed; and not being
refolved to difcourfe with Gallow/fheils on what pal-
fed, we went to the Tavern, on pretence I might
call the Baillie, and feck Horfes or Lime, and ftay-
¢d there till Polwwors came, which {eemed unknown
to Gallowfbeils ; then we returned to Gollowfheils
Houfe, and after Supper Polwort whifpered the
Earl of Zarras and me, and enquired if we had
feen Mr, Maitin; and we having told him we had,
he enquired if we were free to commun on the Af-
fair before Galloswfbeils, we told, as he thought fir,
for we could truft him : ‘Then he whifpered Gallozv-
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fheils, and (as Iunderftood afterwards) asked if he
was free to commune on Matters of grear Secrely
and Importance with that Company, to which he
affented ; then we {at down clofs together, and, as
1 remember, Polwort began the Difcourfe,but fince
f am not able to follow exactly the Method of our
Conference, or keep the very Expreflions ufed, or
repeat all that was {poke, or to tell diftinctly what
was every Man’s part of the Difcourle, I fhall fet
down the Heads, and moft remarkablie Paffages
thereof, that I remember, in fome Articles follow-
ing s 1. Polwort fignified that he was credibly 1n-
formed (but I do not remember he named his In-
former) that the Country Party in Euglaud would
draw to the Fields fhortly, as he heard before Lani-
bafs; wherewith Gallow/beils feemed vifibly furpri-
{ed, and being asked, if his Heart failed him alrea-
dy, he faid he did love it better truly to be walking
in hisown Parks in Peace and Quiet, than to be
meddling in {fuch Matters; however heaffured the
Company, that if there came any troublefome
‘World, he would join with them firmly; and the
Barl of Zarras faid, he wondered to hear of any
{uch Refolution in England ; for he took it for a
Principle amongft thatParty there,that theyfhould
make no Stir inthe King’s Life (which the whole
Company owned to be their Opinion and Defirc)
becaule that might {trengthen the Duke’s Inteveft,
and he fufpected it was the Project of the Com-
monwealth’s Men, with whom he believed few
Scots Gentlemen would join; and he was almoft
perfuaded the Duke of Mozmoutl would not concur
in any Rifing during the King’s Lifc ; to whichit
was anfwered by Poiwort, T hat he had indeed heard
that Principle had been generally agreed to, but
it feemed they found they behoved either to do
their Bufinefs now, or lay afide Hopes of doing
it hereafter, which might be, thatif the Charter
of Loxndon were let fall, they would not only lofe
all fafeopportunity ofdigettingMatters,buta great
part of their Strength,and he heard all things were
concerted mutually betwixt Monmontl’s Friends,
and the Heads of the Commonwealth Party ; and
tho’ he heard Adoumonth was fhy on that account,
yet it was hoped he would engage, for otherwile
he would be deferted by that Party. 2. Polwort told
us the Suppcfitions above-written as Qvertures
concerted berwixt our Friends at Londen, and the
principal Men of that Party there; fo the Earl of
Jarras and I rencwed our former Anfwers allo
above-written, and maintained them with all our
Vigour,wherein Gallow/fbeils joined forwardly with
us, and Polwort afferted, we went on very good
grounds, and he was fully of our Opinion, if
things were entirc ; but referred it to be cenfi-
dered, whether it were better to comply with
fome of thefc Methods, tho’ not {o proper and
juftifiable as were to be withed, than to difap-
point the Bufinefs totally, which might be of the
beft confequence to all the Party; yet we did not
condefcend, as I remember, to undertake any of
thefe Methods. And there was a further Ar-
gument adduced againft the tryfting above-
written, viz. That it was talked there was 2 Day
appointed in Exgland, lately in Shaf:sbury’s Time,
which did not hold, fo they were not to be relied
upon. 3. It was propofed to be confidered what
Methods were moft proper in the Company’s
Opinion for Szerland to follow in cafe of England’s
Rifing; whereanentit wasfaid, thatall that could
be expetted or defired from Scorland, was, that
upda the certain News of Eugland’s being in the
Fields, thofe in the Southern Shyres, who would
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own that Party,fhould prefently rife,and (how foon
they could getas many convened as would be able
todeal with ftragling Parties,orany fudden Rifing
in the Countrey} march to join them, and thatic
would be fit thefe inthe Northern Shyres of Eng-
land waited near the Borders for {uch; and that
they had Ofhicers tryfted there to command; and
that thenit would be feafonable for Arey/e to land
in the 27¢ff, and thele Parties on the Borders might
divert the Forces, till he had time to put himfelf in
a Pofture. Thefe things fcemed to be the Senti-
ments of the whole Company, but were not finally
determined till the Opinion of others, who were to
be communed with by Polwor?, were known : And
it was reprefented, there behoved not to be any
wilful and obftinate adhering to our ownThoughts
of things, but an mutual Condefcendanceto others
concerned, otherwile it were not poflible to bring
a publick Dcfign to any good Hiute. 4. All the
Company {eemed to agree, that they thould un-
dertake nothing, or move in that Affair, till chey
had a full and cerrain account what England pro-
pofed, what Methods they refolved to follow there,
who were to be their Heads ; and that if they de-
figned any Attempt on the King’s Perfon, or over-
turning Monarchy, they would not be forward or
clear tojoyn. Andit being here infinuared, that
the moit they could do, at leaft for which there
could be any plaufible pretence to juftify, was to
draw together, and wichout any aét of Hoftility,
{end Addrefles to His Majefty tor Redrefs of the
prefent Abufes of the Government, and for obtain-
ing futhcient Security againft the Hazard they ap-
prehended to their Religionand Libertics : It was
{aid by Polwort, that he was apt tothink, that was
their very Defign ; for he had heard it was gene-
rally believed by that Party in Eugland, that if once
they werein a Body, the King would be prevailed
with to quitc the Duke, to be tried for Popery,
Correfpondence with France, and Acceflion to the
Popith Plot ; and then, if the King were once free
from the Influence of the Duke’s Counfcls, they
were confident he might be moved to reform their
Abufes, and fecure their Religions and Libertics
for the future to their Contentment. . It was re-
{olved, thattill we got the aforefaid Account from
England, and were {atisfied thereanent, and knew
others here, who were to be communed twith, their
Sentiments of what Methods were moft proper for
us, in cafe we fhould undertake, we fhould not
meddle further, only it was left to the Earl of
Tarras and me, 1t we thought fir to acquaint Sir
William Scot younger, with fome of the Matter
of this Conference overly, without taking notice
of our Informers, or fuch an Conference; and it
was recommended to all to be enquiring, at fuch
as they had fome Trult in, indirettly about the
Affe€tion of our Neighbours,and what Armsthere
wasamongit them, thatif we thould get an fatisfy-
ing account, and refolve to join, we might know
where to {feek Men and Arms fuddenly ; here it
was {aid by Polwort, as I think, that if the Earl
of Tarras, Torwovdlie, Gallowfleils, and I, once
took Horfe, he thought the moft part of the
Weft end of Tiviotdale and Selkirkfhyre would
foon come to us, efpecially, when they heard
England was rifen 3 then we tryfted to meet
there againit AZidfummer Fair, betwixt which
the forefaid Account was expeted ; but in cale
it came to any of our Hands {ooner, we promifed
toadvertife the reft, that we might meet prefently,
ifthe Cafe required: This is the Subftance and Sum
of what paffed at the forfaid Conference, thatIcan

now
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now rcmembers but I remember, I was likewile
told thele following Particulars in privat, by Pol-
quort or Torweodiie ( which of them 1 cannot di-
{tinétly tell) the Day of the torfaid Conference,
or within a thort time after. 1. That Polwort keep-
ed the Correlpondence with our Friends at Loi-
doiz; I remember not politively of any of them
that was named, to be on the Inorigue there, ex-
cept my Lord Melvil, Siv Fobin Cochran, Fervif-
wood, and Commuflar Monre (for I hardly knew
any of the reft) and, as I think, Commiffar Moaro
was called his Corrcfpondent there. 2. That the
Money to be advanced by the Englifp Partie to
Scotland, was ready when Mr. Murzin came tfrom
London; and tt was expected, that within few Days
after, it would be difpatched with fome Confident
to Holland (whether by Bills, or in Cafh, 1 can-
sot {ay ) it was called ten Thoufand Pound Ster-
lin, and was to be employed (as I was told) by
that Confident, at Argy/e’s Sight, for buying Arms,
providing Ships to tranfport them with Jrgyle, to
the #7¢ff here, and {uch other Charges. 3. That
how foon our Friends at Londer got notice of
the fafe Arrival of the Confident forfaid, and all
other things were finally concluded there (which
was expelted would be about the middle of
Yuney, as I remember) they would come home,

and, as they paffed, would give them, or on¢ of
them, an particular Accountotal! Refolutions tak-

en, to be communicat to the refty that 1t was not
to be expr €ted by Letters, that behoved to be
und. r Figu.cs and dark expreflions; and, as I re-
member, they were writtena it were .bout the Ca-
~olina Bufinels, orfome Houthold Furn ture, as|
was told ; tor I never v member . faw any Letter,
either dire€t to Lowaon, or lent from it on that
Head. 4.1 was told there was a Signand a Word
agreed on by that Party, fo that Men might know
with whom they might ufe Freedom ; the W ord,
as 1 remember, was Hoerineny, and the Sign, the
openi-g twwo Buttons in the Breafi-coat, and fouttiing
thew prefently 5 this T communicat to the Earl of
Turras, but does not mind I ever faw 1t uled, ex-
cept when 1 vifited Park-Fay here 1nTown, a-
bout the End of Fune; wedifcourfing alittle free-
}y, he asked if { had the Word and Sign of r,[}c
Caroline Men; and ! having given them, he laid
fomething to this purpele, that he was afraid rhat
the Caroling Bufinels did not go well, for there
had becn fome of the Managers expected here (as
I think he named Fervifivood or Commiffar Autro)
thefe eight Days paft, but there was none come,
nor could he learn that any of their Friends had
heard from them for (everal Pofts. Poleworty Tor-
woodlie, and 1, met at Gallowfbeils, on MMidfummes
Fair s but | mind nothing pafled but private /7/%i/-
perings. Dared Sepreinber 15, 1684, and {ub-
{cribed thus,

Fames Murray.

Edinturehy Deccriber 23, 1634
The Depofition above written being read to
the (aid Faues Murray of Philiphauzi), in prefence

of the Juftices and Affizers, he adheres thereto 1n
all Points upon Oarh.

Sic [abferibitar,
Faines Nurray.

Lizlitbaow, 1.P. D.

1103
The faid Fames Murray further depons, That
at their meeting at Gallow/beils, it was refolved,
that they thould keep up their Cels unpayed till
thetr next meeting at Midfummer, which was to
be at Gatlow/feils, and fhould deal with all thefe
they had influence upon te do the like; and that
uponthe Suppolition mentioned in his Qath gtven
in, it was {poke amonglt them, that the Troopers
Horles fhould be feized upon when they were

grafing. And this is the Truth, as he {hall an-
fwer to God.

Sic fubferibitur,
Fames Muiray.
Linlithgew, 1. P. D.

Hugh Scot of Gellowfbesls, aged 36 Ycars, mar-
ried, purged, (g¢c. and {worn ; Depons, That
the Barl of Torras, and Philiphaugh, did come to
the Deponent’s Houfe, in Mzy, 1683, and Pol-
wart came likewife there, where there were Dif-
courfes and Propofals, that if the £uglifh would
rife in Arms, their Friends in the South Shires
{hould rife with them ; and that they fhould feize
the Horfes belonging to the King’s Troops, where
they grazed; and the 'Town of Berwick, and the
Caftle of Stirling: And likewile it was there dif=
courfed anent the late Earl of Argyle’s coming to
invade Scotland 3 but becaufe of the uncertainty of
Sea Voyages, there was not much frefs laid upon
it. Depons, It wasalfo propofed, that fome of
the South Countrey, whom they trufted in, thould
beacquainted with ir, and that Endeavours thould
be ufed to learn what Arms was in the Countrey.
Depons, There was {ome fuch Difcourfe there,
as that the Earl of Zarras, Philiphaugh, Torwood-
liey, Polworty, and fome others fhould draw to
Horfe with the firlt, when the rifig fhould be in
readinefs, that it might be expected thai the South
Parts ot Teviotdale and Selkirk Shire would join

with them. And this is the Truth, as he ihall
anfwer to GO D,

Sic fubferibitur,
Hugh Scot.

Linlithgow, 1. P. D.

His Majefty’s Advocat produced other Depo-
fitions, emitted by Gallowvfleils, before the Lords

of the Secret Committee, whereof the Tenor
follows.

Edinburgh, the 14th of Septemnber, 1684.

Gallpwfbeils deponsy, That the Earl of Zarras
and Philiphaugh, being in his Houfe in May, 1683,
difcourfed of an mtended riling in England, and
of Propof.ls made to Seotfmen, to rife with them,
and of Loudon 1n particular, and that Polwort was
prefent at that Meeting ; and told he was fure the
Enolifbwen intended {o, and that it was difcourled
at that Meeting among(t them, that it were fit to
{eize Bevwick and Stirling 3 and that it was talked
amongft them of bringing the Duke of Yurk
to Tryal, and that the King would abandon him.

Sic fubferibitur,
Hugh Scot,
Perth
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Perth Cancel,
Oneenshury. Fo. Drumiond.

George Mackenzie, George Mackenzic,

Edinburgh, Oftober 29, 1684.

Sederunt
Lord Chancellor, Lovd Prefident,
Lord Secretary, Lord Advocat.

The Laird of Gallowfbeils, Prifoner in the Tol-
booth of Edinburgh, being called and examined up-
on Oath, Depons, That in the Moneth of May,
1683, the Earl of Zarrasy Hume of Polwort El-
der, and Laird of Philiphaugh, came to the Depo-
nent’s Houfe, himfelf being abfent, at his coming
Home, they were {peaking of the Security of the
Proteftant Religion ; and of a Party in England,

who would fecure or feize the King or Duke; and

thatif any thould rilcin Arms todefend them, orto
refcue the King and Duke, here was another Party
who would rife in Armsagainft them ; it was pro-
pofed, that fome Gountry-men {hould be fpoken
to, to try their Refolutions, and that the Refolu-

tions of England tfhould be told them, to fec if

they would concur. But the Deponent docs not
remember that this Propofition was approven, or
undertaken to be done by any prefent; nor does
he remember who managed the Difcourfe. It was
likewife propofed, to {eize the Ofhcers of State,
efpecially the Chancellor and Thefaurer ; and the
{aid Sir Fobu Cocliran was to come to the Weft
from England, for advancement of the Defign ;
and that the Earl of A4igyle was to land in the
Weft-Highlands, and to raile that Country, Of
thefe Matters all thefe who were prefent, dil-
courfed as of an Affair that they were agitating,
and wherein themfelves were particularly con-
cerned, though at thit time they did not con-
clude what their Carriage thould be. The reafon
why the Deponent cannot be more particular is,
becaule he was fometimes gring out, and fome-
times walking up and down the Room; and
though the Deponent cannot be pofitive of the
very Words, yet he is pofitive they were cither
thefe Words, or Words to that purpolc.

Sic fubfeiibitar,
Iuzh Scot.

Peith Cancellasivs.

Edinburahy Decemler 2.3, 163.4.

Hugh §cot of Gallow/beils, being lolemniy {worn,
in prefence of the Juftices and Affize, adheres to
the Depofitions within and above written in all

Points.
Sic fabferibitur,
Hyrly Scot,

Lialithoow, 1. P. D,
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His Majefty’s Advncaf, in fortification of the
former Probation, adduces the Printed Copy of
Mr. William Carflares’s Depofitions,emitted before

the Officers of State, and other Lords of Privy
Council, and leaves the fame to the Affize, and

ufes it as an Adminicle of Probation ; for though
it was capitulat, that he thould not be made ufe
of as a Witnefs; yet it was agreed, that the De-
pofition fhould be publithed: And likewife pro-
duces the principal Depofition {igned by himflf,

and the faid Lords.

The Lords Juftice-General, Juftice-Clerk,
and Commiflioners of Jufticiary, admit
the Paper produced as an Admiricle, and
refers the Import thereof to the Inqueft,
and ordains the Printed Paper, as it is co}-
lationed, to be taken in, and confidered
by the Inquet.

Sir illiam Pater fon, and Mr. Colin Mackenzie,
Clerks of His Majclty’s Privy Council, being in-
terrogat, 1t they heard Mr, // sllrain Carflares own
the Depofitions read, Depons they faw and heard
him {wear, and own the fame upon Oath, and
they collationed the Printed Copy with the O-
riginal formerly, and now they heard it colla-
tioned.

Si¢ Subferibityr,
William Palcifoi.
Colin Mackenzie.

The Depofition of My, William Carftares,
whei be wias examined before the Lovds of
Secret Committeey piven in by hiwmy, and re-
wewed upon Oath, upon the 22d. of De-
cember, 1634, in piefence of the Loids
of His Majefly’s Privy Council.

Edinburah-Caftle, September 8. 1684,

Mr, Williain Carflares being examined upen
Oath, conform to the Condelcenfion given in by
him, and on the Terms therein mentioned; De-
pons, That about November, or Deceinber, 1682,
Jaines Stenarty, Brother to the Laivd of Caultuefs,
wrote a Letter to him from Follaad, importing,
That if any confiderable Sum of Money could

be procured from Ewgland, that fomething of

Importance might be done in Scotlznd : The
which Letter the Deponent had an inclination
to inform Shepherd in Ab-chusch-Lane, Nerchant
in Londosn, of 3 but before he could do it, he wrote
to Mr. Stenart above-named, to know from him,
if he might do it ; and Mr. Stezart having con-
{fented, he communicat the faid Lettrer to Mr.
Shepherd, who told the Deponent that he would
communicat the Contents of it to fome Perfens
n Eagland 3 but did at that time name no body,
as the Deponent thinks: Sometime thereafrer
Mr. 8hepherd told the Deponent, that he had
communicat the Contents of the Letter above-
named to Colonel Sidiey, and that Colonel
Dznvers was prefent; and told the Deponent,
that Colonel Sidiey was averfe from imploving
the late Larl of 4rgyle, or medling with him,
judging him a Man too much affefted to the
Royal Family, and inclined to the prefent

LChurch Government 5 yet Mr. Sheplberd being
put
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put upon it by the Deponent, {till urged, that
onc might be fent to the Earl of Areyle ; but,
as Mr. Shephard told him, he was fufpected upon
the account of his urging fo much; yer after-
wards he preffed, without the Deponent’s know-
ledge, that the Deponent being to go o Hol-
land, howcver might have fome Commiffion to
the Earl of Aigyle; which he having informed
the Deponent of, the Deponent told him, that he
himlclf would not be concerned; but if they
would fend another, he would introduce him;
but nothing of this was done: Upon which the
Deponent went over, without any Commiffion
from any body, to Hplland, never meeting with
Sames Stevart above-named: He was introduced
to the Liarl of Arpyle, with whom he had never
before converfed, and did there difcourfe what
had paft betwixt Adr. Shepbard and him 3 and par-
ticularly about remitting of Money to the {aid Earl
trom Lnglaid; of which the faid M. Steuart had
written to the Deponent, namely of 30,000 Pounds
Sterling; and ot the rafing of 1000 Horle and
Dragoons; and the fecuring the Caftle of Edin-
burgh, as a Matter of the greateft fmportance,
The Method of doing this was propoled by the
Deponent, tobe one Houry orthereby, after the
relieving of the Guards: But the Earl did not re-
lith this Propofition, as dangerous; and that the
Caftles would fall of confequence, after the Work
Abroad was done.  Fames Steuart was of the De-
ponent’s Opinion for feizing the Caftle, becaufe
it would fecure Edinburgh, the Magazines and
Arms; as to the 1000 Horle and Dragoons, my
Lord Argyle was of Opinion, that without them
nothing was to be done; and thatifthat Number
were railed i Eagland to the faid Earl, he
would come into Scotfand with them ; and that
there being fo few Horfe and Dragoons to meet
them, he judged he might get the Country with-
out trouble, having {uch a ftanding Body for their
I'ricnds 1o rendezvous toj and the {aid Earl
faid he could fhow the Deponent the convenient
Places for landing, it he underftood, and, as the
Deponcnt remembers, where the Ships could at-
tend.  The Deponent remembers not the Names
of the Places.  The Deponent {poke to the Lord
Stairs; but cannot be pofitive that he named the
Affair to him, but found him thy: But the Earl
of Aigyle told him, he thought Stairs might be
gainzd to thew; and that the Earl of Lowdenn
being a Man of good Reafon, and difobliged,
would have great Influence upon the Country,
and recommended the Deponent to Major Holiiis,
with whom the Deponent had fome Acquaintance
before, and had brought over a Letter from him
to the Earl of Argyle; but the Deponent had not
then communicated any Thing to the fatd Holws,
Fanes Sterart laid downaway of Correlpondence
by Cyphers and falfc Names, and {ent them over
to Holiss, and the Deponent, for their ufe (which
Cyphers and Names arc now in the Hands of
His Majefty’s Officers, asthe Deponent fuppofes)
and did defire the Deponent earneftly to propole
the 30,000 Pound Svevling abovenamed to the Par-
ty in Lzglaad, and did not proploe any lefs; for,
as the Earl told the Deponent, he had particularly
calculated the Expence for Arms, Ammunition,
E5e.  But Fames Stenart faid, that if {fome Icfs
could be had, che Earl would content himfelf, 1f

betier might not be; but the Earl always faid,

that there was nothing to be done without the
Body of Horfe and Dragoons above-mentioned,
Vour. Il
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During the time of the Deponent his Abode in
Hbolland, tho’ he had feveral Letters from Shep-
hard, yet there was no fatisfactory Account, till
fome time after the Deponent parted from
the Earl of Asgyle, and was making for a Ship at
Rotterdam, to tranfport himfelf to England, Fames
Steuart wrote to him that there was hopes of the
Money. The next Day after the Deponent came
to England, hemet with Sir Fobs Cochran, who,
with Commiflar Monro, and Fervifwood, was at
London before he came over; and depons, thar
he knows not the Account of their coming,
more than for the perfeting the Tranfattion
about Cardline : And having acquainted Sir Fobn
Cochran with the Earl’s Demands of the 30,000
Pound §terling, and the 1000 Horle and Dragoons,
Sir Fobn carried him to the Lord Ruffel, to whom
the Deponent propofed the Affair; but being an
ablolute Stranger to the Deponent, had no return
from him at that time; but- afterwards having
met him accidentally at Mr. Shepbard’s Houle,
where the Lord Ruffel had come to {peak to §hep-
bhard about the Money above-named, as Mr. §keps
hard rold the Deponent: The Deponent (when
they were donc {peaking) defired to {peak to the
Lord Ruffel, which the Lord Ruffel did, and hav-
ing reiterate the former Propofition for 30,050
Pound Sterling, and the 1000 Horfe and Dra-
goons, he the Lord Ruffel told the Deponent,
they could not get fo much raifed at the time;
but if they had 10,000 Pound to begin, that
would draw Pcople in; and when they wereonce
in, they would foon be brought to more; but
as for the 1coo Horle and Dragoons he could fay
nothing at the prefents for that behoved to be
concerted upon the Borders. The Deponent
made the fame Propolal to My, Fergufoin, who
was much concerned in the Affair, arnd zealous
for the promoving of it. This Ay, Fergufon had
in Ofober, or Noveinber betore, as the Deponent
remembers, ina Converlation with the Deponent
in Cleapfide, or the Strect {omewhere therc-
about, {aid, That, for the faving of innocent
Blood, it would be neceffary to cut off a few, in-
{inuating the King and the Duke; buotcannotbe
pefitive whether he named them or not: To
which the Deponent faid, That’s Work for our
wild People in Seotland, my Conlcience does not
ferve me for fuch Things; after which the Depo-
nent had never any particular Difcourfe with -
gifon, as to that Martter; bot as to the other
Affair, Fergafon told the Deponent that he was
doing what he could to get it effectuate, as par-
ticularly that he {poke to one Major #ildmar,
who is not of the Deponent his Acquaintance,
Fergufonblamed always Sidney, as driving Defigns
of hisown. The Deponent met twice or thrice
with the Lord Melwvil, Sir Jobn Cochran, Fervif
wood, Commiflar Monro, the two Ceffitocks, Npir-
goine;y of Landfbaw, and one Mr. Veitch, where
they difcourfed of Moncy to be fent to Arpyle,
inorderto the carrying onthe Aftair; and though
he cannot be pofitive the Affair was named, yer
it was underftood by himlelf, and, ashe conceives,
by all prefent, to be for rifing in Arms for reti-
fying the Government. Commiflary Asuro, Lord
Melvil, and the two Ceffnocks were againft med-
ling with the Englifh, becaufe they judged them
Men that would talk, and would not do, but were
more inclined to do fomething by themfelves, if
it could bedone. The Lord AMefvil thought eve-
ry thing hazardous, and therefore the Depo-
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nent cannot fay he was pofitive in any thing, but
was moft inclined to have the Duke of Monnouth
to head them in Stotland, of which no parucular
Method waslaid down. Fervifwoeod, the Deponent,
and My, Peitch, were for taking Money at one of
thele Meetings. It wasrefolved, that Mr. Martin,
late Clerk to the Juftice-Court, fhould be {ent to
Scotland,to defire their Friends to hinder the Coun-
try from rifing, or taking rath Refolutions upon
the Account of the Council, till they fhould {ce
how Matters went in England,  The {aid Martin
did go at the Charges of the Gentlemen of the
Mceting, and was direfted to the Laird of
Polwoert and Torwooedliey, who fent back Word
that ic would not be found fo eafy a matter
to get the Gentry of Scorland 1o concur: But
afterwards in a Letter to Commiflfar Monre,
Polwort wrote that the Country was readier to
concur than they had imagined, or fomething to
that purpofe. The Deponent, as above-faid, hav-
ing brought over a Key from Hollaud, to lerve
himfelf and Major Holws: He remembers not
that ever he had an exa& Copy of it, but that
fometimes the one, fometimes the other keeped
it, and {o it chanced to be in his Cultody, when
a Letrer from the Earl of Adrgyle came to Major
Holms, intimating, that he would join with the
Duke of Moimonth, and follow his Meafures, or
obey his Direftions. This M. Feitel; thought fic
to communicat to the Dukeof Afenmnonth, and for
the underftanding of it wasbrought to the Depo-
nent ; and he gave the Key vo ddv. Peitch, who, as
the Deponent was informed, was to give itand the
Lerter to M. Fergufon, and he to thew it to the
Duke of Mdonmontlhs but what was done 1n 1t the
Deponent knows not.  The Deponent heard the
Defign of killing the King and Duke, from /7.
Shephard, who told the Deponent fome were full
upon it. 'The Deponent heard that Aaroi Sunith
was fent by thofe in Euglaudy to call Sir Fohu
Cochran, on the account of Carolina; but that he
does not know Aaren Smith, nor any more of that
Matter, not being concerned in it.  Shephard
named young Haubden frequently as concerned
in thefe Macters,

Signed at Edinburgh-Cafiley the Sth of Sep-
te, 165, and renewed the 18th of the
fame Month.

Iilliam Carfiares.
PERTH Cancell, .. 2. D.
Edinburgh-Caftley 18th September, 1634,

M. Filliam Carflares being again examined,
adheres to his former Depolition, m all the Parts
of ir, and Depones he knows of no Correlpon-
dence between Scotland and Ergland, except by
Adirtin before named 5 for thofe Gentlemen, to
whom he was fent, were left to follow theirown
Methods, #eitch fometimes, asthe Deponentre-
members, ftayed fometimes at Necolfon, Stabler’s
Houle at Londen-#all; fomerimes with one Wi-
dow Flardeaftlein Moor-fields. 'The Deponent did
communicat the Defign on foot to Doctor Owen,
My, Grifhl, and Adr. Mede, at Stepuey, who all
concurred in the promoting of it, and were defi-
rous it thould take effect; and ro one Al Freth
in the Temple, Counfetlor at Law, who f(aid that
he would fee what he could do i reference to the

LI
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Money; but there having gone a Report, that
there was no Money to be raifed, he did nothing
in it; nor does the Deponent think him any more
concerned In the Affair.  Nelthoip frequently
{poketothe Deponent of the Money to be fent to
Argyle, whether it was got, ornot 3 but the Depo-
nent ufed no freedom with him in the Affair.
Goodenongh did infinuate once, that the Lords werg
not inclined to the Thing, and that before, they
would fee what they could do in the City. The
Deponent law My, Fergufon, and My, Rumfey,
lurking, after the Plot broke out, before the Pro-
clamation, having gone to Ferzufoin, in the back
of Bifbopfzate-firect, atfome new Building, whi-
ther he was direCted by Fervifwood, who was de-
firous to know how Things went.  Rusmfey was
not of the Deponent his Acquaintance before, but
they knew as lirtle of the Matter as the Deponent.
This 15 what thc Deponentremembers; andifany
thing come to his Memory, heisto deliver it in
betwixt the firlt of Ofober. And thisis the Truth,
as he fhall anfwer to GOD.

illain Carffares,

PERTH Cancell. 7. P. D,

At Edinburgh, the 22d of December, 168.4.

Thefe foregoing Depefitions, Subfcribed by
My. IFilliam Carflares Deponent, and by the Lord
Chancellor, wereacknowledged on Oath by the
faid Adr. J77illiam Carfiares, 1o be histrue Depo-
fitiens ; and that the Sublcriptions were his, in
Prefence of us Underfcribers,

Willianz Carflares.

Dagi! Falcoucr.
George Mackenzie.

PERTH Cancell.
Ouceasterry.
Athol.

His Majefty’s Advocat for farther Probation
adduces the Examinations of Mr. Shepbard, taken
before Sir Leolin Fenkinsy Sccretary of State for
England, with the Information or Depofition of
My, Zachary Bourn, rclating to the Plot, figned
by him and Secretary Feakins, of which Depofi-
tions the Tenors follow.

The Examinatios of Thomas Shephard of
London, Merchant, taken upon Qath be-
fore the Right Hononrable Sir Leolin Jens
kins Kuight, His Majefty’s Priucipal Se
cresary of State, the 23d Day of Decem-
ber, 1683.

The Deponent faith, That Fergafor told him,
on, or about the Moneth of April laft, that an
Infurrection wasintended both in England and in
Scotland 3 and that for the fettling that Affair be-
twixt the two-Nations, Az, Baillie, My, Moiuro,
Sir Folm Cochran, Sir Hugh and Sir George Camg-
bells, with {ome others (whofe Names this Depo-
nent heard not) were come to Londosn,

That theDeponent had fome Acquaintance with
My. Baillie, Mr. Mouro, and Sir Fobn Cochran,
and none at all with Sir Hughand Sir George Camp-
bells ;5 that Mr. Baillie told the Deponent, that the
Earl of Argyle demanded thirty Thoufand Pounds
of the Englifh to capacitat him to begin the Bufi~
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nels effeCtually in Scotland, and that he the faid
Baillie likewife told the Deponent, that having
concerted Things with the Lord Ruffel, and
others, he the faid Baillie found an impofhibility of
raifing thatSum; after which the faid Baillic had

acquainted the Deponent, thatthey were certain-

ly promifed ten Thoufand Pounds, which Sum was
agreed to be payed into the Deponent’s Hands,
in order to be remitted into Holland, for the pro-
viding of Arms; and that the faid Baillie told
the Deponent atdivers times, that the {aid Sum,
or at leaft one half of it, would bc payed {uch a
Day, and fuch a Day; and fometimes asked the
Deponent, if he had received any Part of che faid
Money ; to which the Deponent replied that he
had not, and that he the Deponent {carce thought
any would be payed.

And the Deponent alfo faith, that having had
fome little Converfation with Sir Fobu Cochran, he
remembers well, that both of them did fometimes
Jament the Delays in not paying in the Money s
and faid, that altho’ the {uid tenThoufand Pounds
werce payed in, they, the {aid Sir Fobi Cochran and
My. Monro, feared it would be toolittle; and this
Deponent further fayeth notas to any new Matter,
But the Deponent being asked to explain what he
thought was meant by the Words above-written,

viz. to capacitat him, the Earl of Argyle, to begin
the Bufinc(s, he, this Deponent {aycth, that he

did underftand by the Word Bufinefs, an Infur-
reftion in Scotlaid.

Sic fubferivitar,
‘Thomas Shephard.

j‘umt’ COTam

L. Jenkins.

The Information of Zachary Bours, of Lon-
doiry Brewer, taken upon Oath, the 1oth Day
of December, 1633, before the Right Ho-

nourable Mr. Sccretary Fenkins.

The Informantdepofeth, and fayeth, That M.
Baillie {at up one Night, if nottwo, with Ar.:fer-
gufon, and went feveral times inthe Evening with
him to the Duke of AMonmouth, and the chief Ma-
nagers of the Confpiracy : That Fergufon told the
Deponent, that he the (aid Baillie was the chief
Man for the Scors, next to the Lord Argyle; that
the {aid Bailliedid it up the greatelt part of one
Night with the {aid Fergafon, at which time this
Deponent believeth they were buly in preparing
the intended Declaration, which the Deponent
has the more reafon to believe, 1nas much as the
{uid Fergufon did go about to fhew him the Depo-
nent {uch a Paper,wherein the faid Fergufon washin-
dered by the coming up Stairs of fome Perlon, to
{peak with the faid Fergufon; that the faid Fergufon
told the Deponent, that the main Bufinefs of the
{aid Baillie, in meeting the {aids Confpirators, was
in order to get from them the ten Thoufand
Pounds, promifed for the buying of Arms, for
the Infurreftion intended in Scotland.

That the Deponent {aw Mr. Filliam Carflares
come often to the Lodgings of the faid Fergufon;
but that the faid Fergufon never told the Deponent
of any Difcourfc held by him with the faid
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Carftares; and further this Deponent faith not,

Sic fubferibitur,
Ziac. Bourn,
Furat’ coram

L. Jenkins.
His Majefty’s Advocat likewife produced fe-

veral Warrands, and Papers, to prove that thole
Depofitions are figned by Sir Leolin Fenkins.

His Majefty’s Advocat alfo produced the Books
of Adjournal, bearing My. William Peitch to be
a Forfault Traitor, and the A&t of Parliament
whereby the Forfaulture 1s ratified.

X L R R NN (L R . (R R e L R
JEDEDM2EMe DB DE D500 Jrdl Dbl nledlededlevont i,

His Majefly's Advocars Speech 1o
the Ingueft.

My Lords and Gentlemen,

O U have now a Confpiracy againft His
Majefty’s Sacred Perfon ar.d Royal Govern-
ment, fo fuliy difcovered, that they muft want
Realon as well as Loyalty, who do notbelicve the

Dilc wvery ; and they muft be Enemies toSincerity,
as well as to the King,who do not acknowl dge1r.

Befide, that the Councils of all the three Nations
thought the Proof {ufficient for Indicting a Gene-
ral Thank(giving through all thefe Nations, and
that the Judges of Exgland thoughs the fame ftrong
enough to infer Forfaulture of Life and Eflate
againit fome of all Ranks there; you have a Difco-
very made here from the late Earl of 47gy/e’s own
Letters, and the Confeffion of his own Emi(aries,
the two fureft Proofs that Law ever invinted, or
the Nature of humanc Affairscanallow ; and I am
this Day to add to all this, a new Set of Proofs in
theProcels that I now lead againit this Pannal,from
the Confeflions of Noblemen and Gentlemen, who
have been engaged inthis wicked Confpiracy ; and
who, from a Senfe of their Guilt, are content
freely to depofe againft their neareft Relation,
and theirmoft intimate Friend 5 1n which having
thus cleared to you, that there was really {uch a
Conf{piracy, I thall, in the next place, proceed
to prove this Pannal’s Acceffion to ir.

I't cannot be imagined, that we would willing~
ly involve our Countrymen in it, without a Con-
viction ftronger than our Kindnefs to Scotland, nor
did His Majefty’s Servantsaccufe thisPannal,with-
out the Opinion of theableft Lawyers of the King«
dom,who did with them concur to think,that there
was not the leaft occafion of doubting left tothe
moft indifferent Inqueift of his Guilt, after they
had ferioufly and with Refletion read over and
pondered the Probation now laid before you.

The Perfonaccufed of Acceflion to this Cryme,
is the Ringleader of all thofe who in this Kingdom
concurred with the Englify Confpirators, as you
may lee by the Teftimonies of all who have de-
poled; and it was indeed fit and juft to begin
with the moft guilty; fo that if he be not con-
viéted, there thould no Man be punithed for this
Confpiracy, all the Noife we have heard of it, is
but a Cheat, the King’s Judges have been Mur-
derers, all the Witnefles have bten Knaves, and
fuch as died for it have been Martyrs.

The Acceffion charged on the Pannal is not an
accidental Efcape, nor is it proved by Witnelles,
who can be (ufpeéted of Unkindnefs to his Perfon,
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or his Caufe ; for it isa long T'raét of a continued
Defign, gone about with the greateft Deliberation
and Concern imaginable, and proved by his near-
eft Relations, and Perfons {o deeply engaged in
that Caule, for which he {uffers, that they were
content with him to venture their Livesand For-
ranes in that Quarrel. He s notaccufed of a Cryme
that canamount only to a fingle Murder, tho’ that
be adreadful Cryme, but a Rebellion, which was
to draw upon us a Civil War, that Murder of
Murders, in which hundreds of thoufands were
to fall; and to crownall, hewastobegin, andto
be the chief Promoter of a Rebellion, in which
one of the firft Steps was to kill His Sacred Ma-
jefty, andhis Royal Brother, and one ot the chief
Witnefles, which I have led againft him, is Bour,
which Boarn contefled that he was to kill the
King, and who confefles the Pannal {at up {everal
Nights with Fergafon, the other Contriver ot the
King’s Murder; and fo familiar was he witch him,
that Boxindepons, that the faid Pannal had been
with Feigufon at the drawing of the Mauifeflo,
whereby he was not only to be an A¢tor, but to
be the Jultifier of that horrid Villany 5 and there-
fore Bouri depons, that Fergefon (the belt Judge
in that Cafe) looked upon him as the chiet Man,
next to Aigyle; but becaufe no Man 15 prefumed
to go to {uch a hight, without previous Inclina-
tion and Motives, I fhall, to convince you that
this Gentleman was very capable of all that was li-
belled again{t him, remember you, thatheis Ne-
phew and Son-in-Law tothe late 7 arifloun, bred
up in his Family, and under his Tutory 5 about the
time of this Plot 1t was undeniably known, and s
now {ufliciently proved by two prefent Witnelles,
the Earl of Zarias and Commiffar Adouro, that he
thought himfelf defperat, knowing him(elf to be
guilty of Trealon by Blackiwood’s Caic, andas it’s
prefumable, thata Man that’s guilty of one Point
of Trealon, will commit another, fo when a Man
is delperate as to his Life and Fortune, he is ca-
pable of any thing; he was likewife animated
to commit this Cryme by the Intelligence he had
that there was a Plot in Euglaind, carryed on by
Men of fo great Parts, Fortune, and Influence,
and by the two probable Hopes, thatthey would
ger all the WFeffer Shyres to join with them
here, becaule of the common Guilt, in which they
had engaged themiclves, by their late Excrava-
aances, they made anaccount of an Affiftance of
rwenty thouland Men, and by Philiphaugh’s Depo-
fition,that thefe Gentlemen expeted the Concurfe
of the Southern Shyres s and thus Iam to prove to
you a Cryme, whichis in 1t {elf {o probable and
liklie, that it fhould need little Probation, tho’l
have adduced for your Convitiion {ufficient Evi-
dences, albeit the Cryme were in it {elf very un-
liklie, -
The Crymes, which 1 hope T have proved, are,
That Fervifiosod the Pannal tranfaéted for Money
to the late Earlof Argyle,adeclared Traitor.  z.
That he defigned roraile a Rebellion. 3. That he
intercommuned with the Earl of #rgyle and M.
Feitch declared Traitors. 4. That he was prefent
where it was treated, either that £rgy/e fhould have
Money from the Eiglif2, and Afliftance from Seoz-
land, or that a Rebellion thould be raifed, and
that he did not reveal the {amine 5 and all thele
being found relevant feparatim, it is {ufficieat for
me¢ to have proved any one of them. And if a
Gentleman was lately found guilty of High-
Treafony by the Opinion of all the Lords of Sef-
fion, for not revealing, that Sir Fohn Cochran
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fought fifty Pounds Sterfizg {rom him, tho’ he
refufed the fame, and tho’ he believed it was foughe
for a charitable Subfiftence to preferve him from
ftarving, what delerves this Pannal, who fouaznet
thirty thouland Pounds Srerling, to buy him
Arms, to invade his Native Country ?

That Fervifwood was defigning to carry on 2
Rebellion, or at lealt was acceflory, or (as our
Lawtermsit) was 47t and Part thercof, 1s clear-
ly proved; but that in this occult and hidden
Crime, which ules not to be proved by cloar
Witnefles, 1 may lead you thorow all the S.cps
of the Probatton, which, like the Links of a
Chain, hang upon onc another: You will be
pleafed to conlider, that, 1. Itis proved that he
defired a blind Commiflion to go to Euglzid, not
to manage the Aftirs ot the Careliza Company,
as he contefleds but ro pufly the Peoplz of ¥ngland
to do fometbiug for theifelves, becanfe they did ouly
tatk, and nor doy and what he would have them
to do, appears too clearly, beeaufe he tells the
Earl of Tairas, it was probable, 7hat if 1he Aixz
were briskly put 1o it by the Peiliamert of England,
he wonld confens toexclide the Duke from the Succo/
fioin: Here is not only a treafonable Defign (the’
a Defign be {ufficient in Frealon) but hLere are
exprels Ats of Treaflonproved, @iz, Fhe treating
with the Earl of Zwrras up. n this Dclign, the
{zteling a Correfpondence with him for the Profe-
cution of ir, and the writing Letters from Loidos
to him cancerning it, and the {ending down A/,
Maytin to compleat it by » general Rifing.  Ashe
defigned to pufh on the Euglifh, {o he profecutes
clofely this Defign upon all occufions. On the
Road he complains cunningly and bitrerly, that
our Lives, Laws, and Liberties, ard the Prowel-
tant Religion, weic in Danger, the Style and
Method of all fuch as defign to rebel; afrer he
arrives at Leunden, he cngages the Confpirators
there to aflilt the late Earl of Argyile, adeclared
Traitor, with Money to buy Arms; this was
indeed to puth the Euglift to do the moit dan-
ocrous T hings by the molt dangerous Man, and
in the moft dangerous Methods. Ide enters alfo
in a ftrict Corre{lpondence with Fergafon the Con-
triver, with §hepbaid the Thelaurer, and Cii-
[ares the Chaplain of the Conipiracy.

Alexandcr Mozro, another prefent Witnefs,
proves that he argued with him that it was ne-
ceffary to give Jrgyle Money exprefly for carrying
on the Rebellion jand that they did mectat Feraif-
wood's Chamber where this was fpoke of, and from
which Ay, Robert Muartin was fent o their Friends
in Scotland, to know what they would do; and
tho’ the filly Caution was, that they fent him to
prevent their Rifing, yet a Man muit renounce
Common Senfe, not to {ce that the Defign
was ro incitec them to Rebellion, and to pre-
vent only their doing any thing in this re-
bellious Defign, by which they might lofe
themf{elves in a too early and abortive Infur-
reftion here, till things were ready in Ewugland.
For, 1. This Commiffion was given him in a
Place, and by a Company who had been them-
{clves treating immediately before of fcnding
Money to the late Earl of Zigylz to buy Arms,
and ccrtainly thofe Arms were to be bought for
Men, and not for a Magazine. 2. They were
treating how many Men could be railed in Sioz-
lend. 3. Corftares’s Depofition bears, that
Martin was fent to hinder rath Reclolutions,
till they faw how Matters went in Eagland; and

the Return to their Ambafly bore, that it would
. . .not
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not be an eafy matter to get the Gentry of Scoz-
land to concur,but afterwards better Hopes of their

Rifing was given, which could not have been, if

the rrue Commifiion had not beento raife Scotland.
4. ‘I'bat Sir Fobu Cochran made a fpeech to that
purpofc, is exprefly proved, and that Fervifwood
{poke to the fame purpole, is proved by a neceflary
confequence; for finceit’s proved; that hefpoke,
and that he did not {peak againft 1ty 1t muft necef-
farily foilow that he fpoke tor it, tho’ the Witnefs
is {o cautious, that he cannot condef{cend upon the
Words nowatter folong a time, andit is againft
Senfe to think,that Jervifwood, who in private pref-
{cd the fame fo much upon Commiflar Moure, and
who was the Deacon-Conveener here, and who,
as Mr, Murtintheir Envoydeclared, was che Per-
jonn who was to be fent for the Arins, thould not
himfelf have been the mofl forward Man n that
Defign s butaboveall exitus aita probat,this Com-
miflioner (who being a meer Servant, durlt not
have propofed any thing from himfelf, being a
mean Perfun, and being one, who, as the Earl of
Tarias depoles, would fay nothing, but what was
in his Paper) does exprefly declare, that he came
from Fervifwood and others; and m the meeting
with him, a Rebellion isatually formed and itis
refolved, they thould feize the King's Ofhcers of
State, Garrifons, and Forces, and that they thould
join with chelate Barl of Argyie, and pur their own
fforces in a Condition to join with thele For-
ces, that were o come from Englzind, and they
cave a Sign, anda Word, which ules only to be
done in aCtual War; {o here is Treafon clearly
proved, by two prefent Witnefles, trom the firft
Defign to 1ts latt Perfection.

Nor can it be objected, that they are not con-
curring Witnefles,buc zefles fingulires upon feparat
Adlts; torinreiterable Crimes, Witnefles depoling
upon differcnt Aéts, do provey if the Deeds tend
to the fame end 3 as forinftance, if one Witnefs
{hould depofe,thatthey faw a Traitor fit tna Coun-
cil of Warinone place, and in another place they
faw him in Arms, or that one faw him aflilt at a
Proclamation in one p'ace, and faw him in Arms
i another, or that onefaw him writea Treafona-
ble Piper, and another faw him ufeic: Thefe Wit-
nefles are Hill confidered as Coateffes, or concur-
ring Witneffes ; and ten or twelve Inqueifts have {o
found, and upon their Verdict, Rebels havebeen
lately hang’d.  Thelearned Judges of Englaud be-
ing all met together did exprefly find, that onc
Witnels proving, thar 4. A. fuid, that he was go-
ing to buy a Knife to kill the King, and another
depofing, that he {aw him buy a Katie, without
telling for whag,thatth efe twoWitnefles were Con-
tefes, and proved [ufficiently the Crime of Trea-
{on; yet there the one Witnefs proved only are-
mete Deﬁgn, and theotiteran Act, which wasin-
different of 1ts own nature,and became only Trea-
fonable by the Connexion; but no Wirnefles ever
depoled npon things {o coherent, and fo connetted
together, as thele do ; for they depofe {ftill upon the
{ame Perfon, carrying on the fame Defign of 2
Rebellion, as to which, inone place, heisexciting
his own Nephew, and telling him hi: Relolutions,
aud fettling a Gorrefpondence with bim, at ano-
eher time he prefles Commiffar Adonro to the fame
Rebellion.  Atathird, heholdsa Mceting at his
own Chamber, and {peaks concerning it, and from
that Meeting he fends a Truity, who forms the
Rebeliion, Belidesallthis, tho’ two Witnc(es be
{ufhicient, I have adduced Mr. #illiam Carflares
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Chief Con{pirator, and who cheofed rather to fuf-
fer violent Torture,than todifclofe it he likewife
depofes uponall thefe Steps, and conneéts them to-
gether, and this his Depofition is twice reiterated,
upon Qath, after much Premeditation. And I
likewife adduce two Depofitions taken upon Oath,
by Sir Leolin “feitins, who wasimpowered by the
Law of Eugland,and atthe Command ofthe King,
and the Council of Euglaind, upon a Letter from
His Majelty’s Officers of State here, in which De-
pofition, 8bephard, one of the Witnefles, depoles,
that Bzillic cameirequently to him,and defived him
to advance the Money, and lamented the Delnys ;
and that there was {o little to be advanced, and
who fhould be better belicved than one who was
his own Trufty, and a Perfon who was ableto ad-
vance fo greataSum? Bourianother of the Wit-
nefles, depofes, that Fergafon rold him, that the
Pannal {poke frequently to him concerning the
{ame Money,and thathe fatup feveral Nights with
Fergufon upon the {aid Confpiracy ; and who fhiould
be better believed than Fergufoi’s Confiient, and
one who was {o far trufted in cthe whole Affair, that
he was to takeaway that Sacred Life, which Hea-
ven has preferved by {o many Miracles?

Againit thele three Depofitions you have heard
it objctted, that sou 2efitmonia, fed tefles pirchant,
elpectially by our Law; in whichbyanexprefs Act
of Parliament, no Probartion is to be led, but in
prelence of the Aflifeand Panval.  To which it is
aniwered, that thele Depofitionsare notmeer Te-
{timonics ; for I calla Teftimony a voluntar Ce-
claration, emitted withour an Qath, anda Judge;
but thefe Depofitions are taken under theawe of an
Oath, and by the Directionofa Judge. 2. 8bephard
was confronted with the Pannal himicli,and he had
nothing to fay againit him, whercas the great thing
that can be objeéted agamnfl Tellimonies (and by
our Statute efpecially) is, that if the ’arty who
emits the Teftimony had been confronted with tha
Pannal, the Impreflionof feeing a Per(on that was
to die by his Dcpoﬁtion, would have made bim
afraid to depofe laxly ; and the Pann:il hikewile
might by propofing Interrogatorsand Quettions,
have cleared himfelf,and fatishied the Judges in ma-
ny things depofed againft him : But fo it i that
Mr.Shephard having been confronted with thePan-
nal, betore the King Himfelf, who isas far above
other Judges, in HisReafonand Juftic., asHeis
in His Powerand Authority: He depofusthatthe
Pannal was the chicf Manager ot this Confpiracy,
next to Argyle,and that he was {o paflionate to have
this Money tobuy Arms, that he lamented the De-
lays 5 and can it be imagined that Mr., Shephard,
whom he trufted with his Life, and his Fortune,
and whom all their Party trufted wich rheir Cath,
would have depoled any thing againit him that
was not true, cipecially when he knew thac what
hewastodepole, wistotakeaway his Lifeand his
Fortune? or thatif the Pann.l had been innocent
he would not, when he was contronted with Mr.
Shephard before the King Himlclt, have roared a-
gainft Mr. Shepbard, if be had not been conicious
to his ownGuilt ? Thereisadurprize in Innocence,
which makes the Innocent excluim ; and it infpires
Meénwith a Courage which enables them to con-
found'thofe who depofe falfly againft them; and

in what occafion could either of thefe have appear-

¢d,; more than in‘this, wherein this Gentleman was
charged to have confpired with the greateit of Raf-
cals; againft thebeft of Princes 3 and that oo in
Préfence of the Prince himfelf, againft whonil.]hs
3
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had confpired ? But Guilt ftupifiesindeed, andit
did never more than in this Gentleman’sCafe,whole
Silence wasa more convincing Witnefs than Mr.
Shephard could be.  Mr. Carfiares likewife knew
when he was todepone, that his Depofition was to
be ufed againft Fervifwood; and he {tood more in

awe of his Love to his Friend, than of the Fearof

the Torture ; and hazarded rather to die for feivi/-
awood, than that Fervifwood thould die by him :
How can it then be imagined, that if this Man had
feen Fervifwood in his Trial, it would have alter-
ed his Depofition; or that this Kindnefs, which
we all admired in him, would have fuffered him
to forgetany thing in his Depoiition,which might
have been advantageous in the leaft to his F'riend !
And they underftand ill this hight of Friendfhip,
who think that it would not have been more nice
and careful, than any Advocate could have been:
And if Carflares had forgot at one time, would he
not have fupplied it another; but efpecially at
this laft time, when he knew his Friend was already
brought upon his Trial ; and that this renewed
Teltimony was yet a further Confirmationof what
was faid againft him? And albeit the King’s Ser-

vants were forced to engage, that Carfiares himfelf

fhould not be made ufe of as a Witnefs againft
Fervifwood 5 yet I think this kind {crupulofity in
Carfiares for Ferviftwood thould convince you more
than twenty fufpelt,nay thaneven indifferent Wit-

nefles ; nor can it be imagined, that the one of

thefe Witneffes would not have been as much
afraid of GO D, and his Qath at London, as at
Ldinburgh; and the other in the Council-Cham-
ber in the Forenoon, as in the Juftice-Court in
the Afternoon.

3. 'The Statute founded on does not difcharge
the producing of Teftimonies, otherways thanaf-
terthe Jury isinclofed ; forthenindeed they might
be dangerous, becaufe the Party could not objelt
againft them : But fincethe Statute only difcharg-
cs to produce Writ, or Witnefles, after the Jury
is inclofed, it feems clearly to infinuat, that they
ought to prove, when they are produced in Pre-
fence of the Party himfelf, asnow theyare. And
though the Civil Law did not allow their Judges to
believe Teftimonies, beaufe they were confined
to obferve {trict Law, yer it does not from that
follow, thar our Juries, whom the Law allowsto
be a Law tothemfelves, and tobe confined by no
Rule, but their Confcience, may not trut intirely
to the Depofitions of Witnefles, though not taken
before themfclves, when they know that the Wit-
nefles, by whom, and the Judges, before whom
thefe Depofitions were emitted, are Perfons be-
yond all Sufpicion, asin our Cafe. But yet for
all this, I produce thefe Teftimonies, as Admini-
cles here only to connedt the Depofitions of the
prefent Witnefles, and not to be equivalent to
Witnefles in this legal Procefs; albeit, as to the
Conviction of Manﬁind, they are fironger than
any ordinary W itnefes.

W henyot, my Lords, and Gentlemen, remem-
ber, that it is not the revenge of a privat Party,
that accules in this Cale; and that even in privat
Crimes, fuchas Forgery, or the Murder of Chil-
dren {§c. many Juries here have proceeded upon

meer Prefumptions, and thateven Soloizon himfelf

founded his illuftrious Decifion, approved by God
Almighty, uponthe prefumed Affertionof 2 Mo-
ther; Ihope ye will think two Friends depofing,
as prefent Witnefles, adminiculated and conncéted
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by the Depofitions of others,though abfent,thould
beget inyou an intire belief ; efpecially againft a
Pannal, who hasbeenalways knownto incline this
way, and who, though he was defired in the Tol-
booth to vindicate himfelt trom thofe Crimes,
would not fayany thingin his own Defence ; and
though he ofters to clear himfelf of his acceffion to
the King’s Murder, yet {ays nothing to clear him-
felf from the Con(piracy entered into with the late
Earl of Argyle, for invading his Native Countrey
which 1s alt that I here charge upon him,and which
heinclines to juftific, asa neceflary mean for re-
drefling Grievances : 1 muft theretore remember
you,that an Inqueft of very worthy Gentlemen did
find Rathilles guilty,though there was but one Wit-
nefs led againft him; becaufe when he was pur to
it, he did nor deny his Acceflion : And two Rogues
were found guilty in the late Circuir at Glafiow,
for having murdered 2 Gentleman of the Guard,
though no Man {aw them kiil him; but the Muar-
derers having been purfued,they run to the Place,
out of which the Pannals thenaccufed were taken,
none having feenthe Faceof the Runaways; and
the Pannals being accufed, and preffed todeny the
Acceflion,fhunncd to difown the Guile,but defired
it might be proved againit them. This may con-
vince you thatthereare Proofs which are ftronger
than Witnefies 5 and I am fure that there were
never more proving Witnefles.than in this Cafe;
nor were the Depofitionsof Witneffes ever more
{trongly adminiculated. Remember the Danger
likewife of emboldening Conlpiracies againft the
King's Sacred Life, and of encouraging a Civil
War, wherein your felves and your Polterity may
bleed, by making the leaft Difliculty to find 2 Man
Guilty, by the ftrongeft Proofs thatever were ad-
ducedin folatenta Crime asa Conlpiracyis. And
I do juftly conclude, that whoever denies thata
Confpiracy can be thus proved, does let all the
World fee,that he inclines that Conlpiracies thould
be encouraged and allowed. Our Ageis {o far from
needing fuch Encouragements, thaton the other
hand in this, as in all other Crimes, becaufe the
Guilt grows frequent and dangerous, the Probati-
on thould therefore be made the more eafy,though
in this Cale, the King needs as little defire your
Favour, as fear your Juftice. And I have infifted
{o much upon this Probation, rather to convince
the World of the Conlpiracy, thanyou that this

Conipirator 15 Guilty.,

Thereafter the Lords ordained the Affize to
inclofe, and return their Verdiét to Morrow,
by Nine-a-Clock in the Morning.

Edinburgh, December 24. 1684.

The faid Day the Parfons, who paft upon the
Affize of Mr. Robert Buaillie of fervifwood, return-
ed their Verdiét in Prelence of the faids Lordss
whereof the Tenor follows : The Affize, all in onc
Voice, finds the Crimes of Art and Part in the
Confpiracy,and Plot libelled; and of conccaling,
and not revealing the fame, clearly provenagainft
Mpr. Robert Baillie the Pannal, in refpect of the
Depofitions of Witneflesand Adminiclesadduced.

Sic fubferibitar,
Strathmore, Chancellor.,

Afrer
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. After opening and reading of the which Ver-
dic of Aflize, the Liords, Juitice General, Juftice

Clerk, and Commiflioners of Juiticiary, therefore
by the Mouth of Fames Fobnftous Dempfier of
Court, decerned andadjudged the faid Mr. Rober
Baillie of Fervifwood to be taken to the Mercat-
Crols of Edinburgh, # this twenty fourth Day of
Decoinber inftant, betwixt Twoand Foura Clock
inthe Afternoon,and there to be hanged ona Gib-
bet till he bedead ; and his Head to be cut off, and
his Body to be Quartered infour, and his Head to
be affixed on the Nether-bow of Edinburgh, and
one of his Quarters to be afhxed on the Tolbooth
of Fedburgh, another onthe Tolbooth of Lanerk,
a third on the Tolbooth of 4ir, and a fouith on
the Tolbooth of G/4f¢ew 3 and ordains his Name,
Fame, Mcmory, and Honours to beextinét; his
Blied to be tainted, and his Arms to be riven
forth, and dclete out of the Books of Arms; fo
that his Polterity may never have Place, nor be
able hereafter to bruik, or joyfe any Honours, Of-
fices, Titles or Dignities,within this Realm in time
coming 5 and to have forfavlted, amitted and
tint, all and fundry his Liands, Heritages, Tacks,
S[cadingﬁ, R"JDmF, Poﬂ‘eﬂiom, GUDdS «ngd Gear
whatfoever, pertaining to him, toour Sovereign
1Lord’s Ufe, toremain perpetually with His High-
nclsin Prnperty,which was pronounced forDoom.

Sic [ubfcribitnr,
LINLITHGOW. Roger Hog.
Fanes Toulis. A Sctoin,
F. Lockait. P. Lyon,
Dawid Balfour.

@ This great Expedition was oceaitoned by the Prifonzr’s bad
fate of Fealth, who they fared might avord his Exccuion by
a natral Death.

JITY

Extratied forth of the Books of Adjsurnal, by
me Mpr. Thomas Gordon, CGlerk to the Fu-
feice Conrty

Si¢ fubfeibitu-,
THO. GORDON.,

He was exccuted accordingly the fame Day 5
and at the place of Execution perfifted in denying
his Knowledge of any defign againit the King’s
Life, or the Duke’s, ~r of any Plor againft the Go-
vernment : He owned, he thought it lawful for
Subjetts, being under {uch Preflurers, to try how
they might be relieved from them, and his defign
went no farther; but he refufed to cnterinto par-
ticulars.

Afrerwards, in purfuance of the Sentence, His
Majefty’s Heralds, and Purfevants, with theiv
Coatsdifplayed (after found of Trumpets) did pub-
lickly, infaceof the Court, conform to the Culf-
tom in the Sentences of Treafon, 1n his Majeity’s
Name and Authority, cancel, tearand deftroy the
{aid Mr. Robeit Bailiie his Arms, threw them in
his Face, trampled them under foot ; and or-
dained his Arms to be expunged outof the Bocks
of Heraldry, his Pofterity to be ignoble, and
never to enjoy Honsur and Digpity in time com-
ing : And thercefter went to the Mercat-Crofs of
Edinbureh, and folemnly tore and cancelled the
{aid Mr. Rebert Baillie his Arms, andathxed the
{amine on the faid Mercar-Crofs reverfed, with
this Infcription s The drws of M. Robert Baillie
Jate of Jervitwood Tiaytor,

The End of the THIRD YOLUME




